
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M.  
 

AGENDA 
 
6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 
 
REGULAR MEETING February 11, 2019 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Pastor Scott Tiede, Delaware Bible Church 

 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on January 14, 2019, as recorded and transcribed. 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 
held on January 28, 2019, as recorded and transcribed. 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the joint meeting of Council and 
the Delaware City School Board meeting held on January 28, 2019, as 
recorded and transcribed.  
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 

meeting held on January 16, 2019, as recorded and transcribed.  
B. Resolution No. 19-05, a resolution appointing members to various 

boards/commissions, and/or committees, and specifying the term 
of the appointment.  

C. Establish February 25, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 19-02, an 
ordinance amending Chapter 529 of the General Offenses Code of 
the City of Delaware.  
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 



2 
 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

8. PRESENTATIONS 
A. Presentation of Flag to Delaware Police Department from Delaware 

Bible Church 
B. West Hull Drive Traffic Management Presentation and Discussion – 

William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer  
 
9. CONSIDERATION OF A LIQUOR PERMIT TREX 

A. Food Truck Depot LLC, 59 Potter Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  
Permit Classes:  D5 

 
In order to vote in favor of this application, Council would move to approve 
the TREX and not request a hearing before the Liquor Commission.   
 

10. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 19-01, an ordinance for Ohio 
Health for approval of a Final Development Plan for a medical office 
building on approximately 3.31 acres on property zoned B-4 PUD 
(General Business District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay 
District) and located at 2295 West William Street (US 36).  
 

11. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 19-06, a resolution supporting the 
approval of the Delaware, Knox, Marion, Morrow (DKMM) Solid Waste 
Management District Plan Update, dated November 14, 2018.  
 
A. Jenna Hicks, District Director, Delaware, Knox, Marion, Morrow Joint 

Solid Waste Management District (DKMM) 
 

12. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-02, an ordinance amending 
Chapter 529 of the General Offenses Code of the City of Delaware.  
 

13. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-03, an ordinance supplementing 
the 2019 Appropriations Ordinance to provide funding to construct and 
install a memorial statue to Rutherford B. Hayes downtown at the 
southwest corner of Sandusky and William Street, and declaring an 
emergency.  
 

14. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-04 , an ordinance supplementing 
the 2019 appropriations ordinance and authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into agreements for the funding, installation and operation of an 
electric vehicle charging station, and declaring an emergency.  
 

15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-05, an ordinance providing for the 
issuance and sale of bonds in the maximum aggregate principle amount 



3 
 

of $8,000,000, for the purpose of paying the costs of various public 
infrastructure improvements, together with all related appurtenances 
thereto, and declaring and emergency.  
 

16. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 19-06, an ordinance for Carrols 
Corporation approving a Final Development Plan for Burger King on 
approximately 1.14 acres on property zoned B-3 PUD (General Business 
District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay District) and located at 
1034 West Central Avenue (US 37).  
 

17. DISCUSSION  and RECOMMENDATION: 
A.  Park’s No Smoking Draft Legislation 
B.  Massage Establishment Draft Legislation 
C.  Proposal by Main Street Delaware 
 

18. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

19. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

20. ADJOURNMENT 
 































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM B DATE: 02/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-05 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO VARIOUS BOARDS, 
COMMISSIONS, AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE 
APPOINTMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Carolyn Kay Riggle, Mayor 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Resume 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-05 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO VARIOUS 
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND/OR COMMITTEES, AND 
SPECIFYING THE TERM OF THE APPOINTMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, Members are to be appointed to serve on various Committees, 

Commissions and Boards by the Mayor of the City of Delaware and confirmed by 
Council; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed and Council has confirmed the 
following appointments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The following appointments are hereby made: 
 
1. Metropolitan Housing Board – Scott Wolf- Re-Appointment (term 

expiring February 23, 2024) 
 

SECTION 2.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED:                                    , 2018  YEAS        NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





The City of Delaware

US23 Corridor & West Hull Drive
Traffic Management Update

City Council

Monday, February 11th, 2019



The City of Delaware

• Ravines at Stratford (West Hull Drive) Residents contacted City in 
2017 seeking consideration for change to neighborhood traffic

• Working group formed involving Ravines at Stratford, Wesleyan 
Woods and Stratford Woods neighborhoods to discuss traffic issues

• Parking & Safety Committee considered issue in 2018

• Pilot study proposed to temporarily change plaza access

• Parking & Safety Committee voted to advance issue to full council 









The City of Delaware

Pilot Study
• Temporary installation of “Active” traffic calming 

measures…. i.e. No Exit to W Hull at north access point

• Duration would be temporary (60 to 90 Days)

• Approved by Plaza Owner (Pilot study only)

• Provide actual data regarding alternative route selection



The City of Delaware

Pilot Study Concerns

• Additional changes along US23 may impact traffic circulation 
in area and pilot study results

• Significant public concern presented over limiting access to 
public streets

• Traffic will just be redirected to adjacent neighborhood

• Note: Council did not approve changes to West Hull Drive 
traffic circulation or access in 2002





Active Traffic Calming Measures

Access Controls
& 

Physical Barriers

Turning 
Movement 
Restrictions



Passive Traffic Calming Measures

Pavement Markings, 
Signage & Calming 

Islands



Passive Traffic Calming Measures

Date 
Counted

Street Address ADT
AVG 

Speed
85% 

Speed
Peak Hourly 

Flow
5- Year 

Accidents

Street 
Length 

(mi)

Accident 
per 

100,000 
trips

1/28/2019 Pennsylvania Ave 97 4418 29.2 32 276 (7-9AM) 30 1.2 0.37
2/4/2019 W Hull Dr 154 2472 26.2 29 156 (5-6PM) 8 0.6 0.18

1/10/2019 Buehler Dr 566 2357 29.9 33 245 (7-8AM) 9 0.5 0.21
2/27/2018 Belle Avenue 62 2077 29.1 32 206 (3-4PM) 11 0.6 0.29
1/24/2019 Lexington Blvd 62 1967 28.3 32 166 (7-8AM) 6 0.6 0.17
1/15/2019 Cobblestone Dr 665 1765 29.2 32 219 (5-6PM) 9 0.9 0.28
1/23/2019 Hawthorn Blvd 135 1756 27.2 30 126 (4-5PM) 3 0.7 0.09
4/26/2018 Heritage Blvd/Jefferson Dr 498 1587 27 31 150 (4-5PM) 5 0.5 0.17
1/22/2019 Firestone DR 121 1535 21.2 24 102 (5-6PM) 10 0.7 0.36
1/16/2019 Ashburn Dr 1982 1485 27.7 30 107 (7-8AM) 3 0.5 0.11
8/16/2018 Pinecrest Dr 202 1140 27.3 30 122 (5-6PM 4 0.5 0.19
1/14/2019 Cheshire St 17 955 27.9 32 97 (2-3PM) 6 0.4 0.34

1/9/2019 Executive Blvd 555 929 23.3 26 131 (5-6PM) 11 1.1 0.65
11/28/2018 Cottswold Dr 170 867 28 32 100 (4-5PM) 3 0.6 0.19
11/15/2018 Cheshire Crossing Dr 141 749 26.7 30 80 (5-6PM) 1 0.2 0.07

1/17/2019 Fieldcrest Dr 26 746 27.4 31 64 (3-4PM) 3 0.7 0.22

City of Delaware - Residential Collector Traffic Data - Average Daily Traffic



Passive Traffic Calming Measures

Date 
Counted

Street Address ADT
AVG 

Speed
85% 

Speed
Peak Hourly 

Flow
5- Year 

Accidents

Street 
Length 

(mi)

Accident per 
100,000 trips

1/10/2019 Buehler Dr 566 2357 29.9 33 245 (7-8AM) 9 0.5 0.21
2/27/2018 Belle Avenue 62 2077 29.1 32 206 (3-4PM) 11 0.6 0.29
1/14/2019 Cheshire St 17 955 27.9 32 97 (2-3PM) 6 0.4 0.34
1/15/2019 Cobblestone Dr 665 1765 29.2 32 219 (5-6PM) 9 0.9 0.28

11/28/2018 Cottswold Dr 170 867 28 32 100 (4-5PM) 3 0.6 0.19
1/24/2019 Lexington Blvd 62 1967 28.3 32 166 (7-8AM) 6 0.6 0.17
1/28/2019 Pennsylvania Ave 97 4418 29.2 32 276 (7-9AM) 30 1.2 0.37
1/17/2019 Fieldcrest Dr 26 746 27.4 31 64 (3-4PM) 3 0.7 0.22
4/26/2018 Heritage Blvd/Jefferson Dr 498 1587 27 31 150 (4-5PM) 5 0.5 0.17
1/16/2019 Ashburn Dr 1982 1485 27.7 30 107 (7-8AM) 3 0.5 0.11

11/15/2018 Cheshire Crossing Dr 141 749 26.7 30 80 (5-6PM) 1 0.2 0.07
1/23/2019 Hawthorn Blvd 135 1756 27.2 30 126 (4-5PM) 3 0.7 0.09
8/16/2018 Pinecrest Dr 202 1140 27.3 30 122 (5-6PM 4 0.5 0.19

2/4/2019 W Hull Dr 154 2472 26.2 29 156 (5-6PM) 8 0.6 0.18
1/9/2019 Executive Blvd 555 929 23.3 26 131 (5-6PM) 11 1.1 0.65

1/22/2019 Firestone DR 121 1535 21.2 24 102 (5-6PM) 10 0.7 0.36

City of Delaware - Residential Collector Traffic Data - 85% Speed



Passive Traffic Calming Measures

Date 
Counted

Street Address ADT
AVG 

Speed
85% 

Speed

Peak Hourly 
Flow 

(Vehicles)
Peak Hour

5- Year 
Accidents

Street 
Length 

(mi)

Accident 
per 

100,000 
trips

1/28/2019 Pennsylvania Ave 97 4418 29.2 32 276 7-8AM 30 1.2 0.31
1/10/2019 Buehler Dr 566 2357 29.9 33 245 7-8AM 9 0.5 0.42
1/15/2019 Cobblestone Dr 665 1765 29.2 32 219 5-6PM 9 0.9 0.31
2/27/2018 Belle Avenue 62 2077 29.1 32 206 3-4PM 11 0.6 0.48
1/24/2019 Lexington Blvd 62 1967 28.3 32 166 7-8AM 6 0.6 0.28

2/4/2019 W Hull Dr 154 2472 26.2 29 156 5-6PM 8 0.6 0.3
4/26/2018 Heritage Blvd/Jefferson Dr 498 1587 27 31 150 4-5PM 5 0.5 0.35

1/9/2019 Executive Blvd 555 929 23.3 26 131 5-6PM 11 1.1 0.61
1/23/2019 Hawthorn Blvd 135 1756 27.2 30 126 4-5PM 3 0.7 0.13
8/16/2018 Pinecrest Dr 202 1140 27.3 30 122 5-6PM 4 0.5 0.38
1/16/2019 Ashburn Dr 1982 1485 27.7 30 107 7-8AM 3 0.5 0.22
1/22/2019 Firestone DR 121 1535 21.2 24 102 5-6PM 10 0.7 0.51

11/28/2018 Cottswold Dr 170 867 28 32 100 4-5PM 3 0.6 0.32
1/14/2019 Cheshire St 17 955 27.9 32 97 2-3PM 6 0.4 0.86

11/15/2018 Cheshire Crossing Dr 141 749 26.7 30 80 5-6PM 1 0.2 0.37
1/17/2019 Fieldcrest Dr 26 746 27.4 31 64 3-4PM 3 0.7 0.31

City of Delaware - Residential Collector Traffic Data - Peak Hourly Flow



Passive Traffic Calming Measures

Date 
Counted

Street Address ADT
AVG 

Speed
85% 

Speed
Peak Hourly 

Flow
Peak Hour

5- Year 
Accidents

Street 
Length 

(mi)

Accident 
per 

100,000 
trips

1/14/2019 Cheshire St 17 955 27.9 32 97 2-3PM 6 0.4 0.86
1/9/2019 Executive Blvd 555 929 23.3 26 131 5-6PM 11 1.1 0.61

1/22/2019 Firestone DR 121 1535 21.2 24 102 5-6PM 10 0.7 0.51
2/27/2018 Belle Avenue 62 2077 29.1 32 206 3-4PM 11 0.6 0.48
1/10/2019 Buehler Dr 566 2357 29.9 33 245 7-8AM 9 0.5 0.42
8/16/2018 Pinecrest Dr 202 1140 27.3 30 122 5-6PM 4 0.5 0.38

11/15/2018 Cheshire Crossing Dr 141 749 26.7 30 80 5-6PM 1 0.2 0.37
4/26/2018 Heritage Blvd/Jefferson Dr 498 1587 27 31 150 4-5PM 5 0.5 0.35

11/28/2018 Cottswold Dr 170 867 28 32 100 4-5PM 3 0.6 0.32
1/28/2019 Pennsylvania Ave 97 4418 29.2 32 276 7-8AM 30 1.2 0.31
1/15/2019 Cobblestone Dr 665 1765 29.2 32 219 5-6PM 9 0.9 0.31
1/17/2019 Fieldcrest Dr 26 746 27.4 31 64 3-4PM 3 0.7 0.31

2/4/2019 W Hull Dr 154 2472 26.2 29 156 5-6PM 8 0.6 0.3
1/24/2019 Lexington Blvd 62 1967 28.3 32 166 7-8AM 6 0.6 0.28
1/16/2019 Ashburn Dr 1982 1485 27.7 30 107 7-8AM 3 0.5 0.22
1/23/2019 Hawthorn Blvd 135 1756 27.2 30 126 4-5PM 3 0.7 0.13

City of Delaware - Residential Collector Traffic Data - Accidents per 100,000 Trips/Mile



Recommendations

1. Delay Pilot Study installation of “Active” measures 
until improvements along US23 are completed.

2. Develop policy to provide guidance as to when 
“Passive” traffic calming measures are applicable.  

3. Review all neighborhood collector streets;  Report to 
council.



The City of Delaware

Questions
& 

Discussion



 
 

 

 

Visit  
  

 

 

 

call 

 

fax 

 

click 

City Hall  —  1 south sandusky st  —  Delaware, oh 43015 740-203-1010 740-203-1024 www.delawareohio.net 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Tom Homan, City Manager 
                Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
FROM: Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
DATE: 1/30/2019 
RE:  Economic Development Related Transfer of Liquor Permit (TREX) to Food Truck Depot, LLC 

 
This is intended to provide information related to a requested transfer of a liquor permit for Food Truck 
Depot, LLC at 59 Potter St. as an economic development project (“TREX”) into Delaware.  
 
As you know, state law allows for the transfer of the ownership and location of liquor permits from one 
municipality to an economic development project located in another municipality in Ohio.  Transferring a 
permit to an economic development project in a new municipality is known as TREX. It is required that the 
new municipality acknowledge that the liquor permit will be transferred to an economic development 
project. 
 
This memorandum, and the information provided below is verification that the Food Truck Depot, LLC 
project is indeed an economic development project.  
 
The following economic development impact information has been provided to City staff by way of written 
information from the project owners, in addition to a follow-up conversation with the principal business 
owner Paul Rockwell:  
 
• Estimated Investment (equipment, services, utilities, etc.):   $300,000  
• Total number of jobs to be created:   6 
• Estimated Annual Tax Collections: 
o Sales Tax:   $15,000 
o State Withholding Tax:   $5,000 
o Property Tax:  $3,500 
 
On the basis of this information, I recommend that the City Manager acknowledge, by signature on TREX 
application, that the Food Truck Depot, LLC project represents an economic development project within the 
City of Delaware. 

http://www.delawareohio.net/












  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE:  02/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-01    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR OHIO HEALTH FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDING ON 
APPROXIMATELY 3.31 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED B-4 PUD (GENERAL 
BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 2295 WEST WILLIAM STREET (US 36). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on January 16, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 

































 ORDINANCE NO. 19-01 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR OHIO HEALTH FOR APPROVAL 
OF A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A MEDICAL 
OFFICE BUILDING ON APPROXIMATELY 3.31 ACRES 
ON PROPERTY ZONED B-4 PUD (GENERAL BUSINESS 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 2295 WEST 
WILLIAM STREET (US 36). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on January 16, 2019 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Ohio Health for a Medical 
Office Building on approximately 3.31 acres on property zoned B-4 PUD (General 
Business District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay District) and located 
at 2295 West William Street (US 36) (PC Case 2018-3116). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for Ohio Health for a Medical 
Office Building on approximately 3.31 acres on property zoned B-4 PUD (General 
Business District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay District) and located 
at 2295 West William Street (US 36), is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted 
with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The limestone on the building shall be Delaware blue vein limestone or 
equivalent as approved by City Staff.  

3. The dumpster enclosure shall be made of brick or limestone to the match 
the building and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 

4. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

5. All roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened by a parapet wall or 
approved screening device. 

6. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material and 
color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  



7. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official and all lighting must meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

8. The light poles shall be black. 
9. Street trees shall be planted every 40 feet along Lansdale Drive. 
10. The Shade Tree Commission shall review and approve the landscape plans. 
11. The building signage shall achieve compliance with the approved 

development text and the current zoning requirements. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 02/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-06 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  --- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE APPROVAL OF THE DELAWARE, KNOX, 
MARION, MORROW (DKMM) SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT PLAN 
UPDATE, DATED NOVEMBER 14, 2018. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This plan, which is required by the Ohio Revised Code to be updated every 5 
years, sets forth recommendations, benchmarks, and goals regarding how the 
Solid Waste District will manage solid waste/recycling.  A link to the plan is here 
https://www.dkmm.org/dkmm-plan and an executive summary is included as 
well.  District Director Jenna Hicks will be at the City Council meeting to give a 
short presentation and answer questions.   
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Required by the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

https://www.dkmm.org/dkmm-plan


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
This resolution is required to be adopted by March 11, 2019.  Staff recommends 
approval at the second reading.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Executive Summary 



RESOLUTION NO. 19-06 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE APPROVAL OF 
THE DELAWARE, KNOX, MARION, MORROW (DKMM) 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT PLAN 
UPDATE, DATED NOVEMBER 14, 2018. 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Delaware is situated within the jurisdiction of the 

Delaware, Knox, Marion, Morrow (DKMM) Solid Waste Management District; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council approved an amended Plan in September, 2012; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Delaware, Knox, Marion, Morrow (DKMM) Solid Waste 
Management District Policy Committee adopted the Delaware, Knox, Marion, 
Morrow Solid Waste Management District Plan Update on November 14, 2018; 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has received a copy of the District Plan 
Update and has had an opportunity review it; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

 
SECTION 1.  that the Delaware, Knox, Marion, Morrow (DKMM) Solid 

Waste Management District Plan Update be ratified and approved; and 
 
SECTION 2. that a copy of this resolution be mailed by the Clerk of 

Council to the Delaware, Knox, Marion, Morrow (DKMM) Solid Waste 
Management District Policy Committee at the District's offices in Marion, Ohio. 

 
SECTION 3.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



 

 

 
Delaware-Knox-Marion-Morrow Solid Waste 

Management District 
Solid Waste Management Plan Summary 

 
 

Introduction 
 

The Delaware-Knox-Marion-Morrow Joint Solid Waste Management District (District) will submit its updated 
Solid Waste Management Plan to all cities, villages and townships in Delaware, Knox, Marion, and Morrow 
counties for approval.  This approval process, also known as ratification, is the final step before the District 
seeks final approval from Ohio EPA to 
implement this new Plan.  
 
The following executive summary of 
the solid waste plan has been created 
for the elected officials within the four 
counties to demonstrate how the 
District’s solid waste plan benefits 
each community.  The District offers a 
wide variety of programs and 
initiatives that offer real value to its 
counties and communities. 
 
Recycling Programs 
 
Within the District there are numerous 
recycling collection programs 
designed to divert as much solid 
waste from landfills as possible:  The 
programs include: 

 
• 20 Curbside Recycling Programs – 8,712 tons recycled 
• 55 Drop-off Recycling Programs – 3,483 tons recycled 
• 10 Yard Waste Management Program – 16,308 tons composted 
• Scrap Tire Recycling – 2,648 tons recycled 
• Commercial/Industrial Recycling – 153,837 tons recycled  
• Private Recyclers, Scrap Yards, and End-Use – 66,090 tons recycled 

 
Other Programs Offered 
 
• Curbside Recycling Program 
• Drop-Off Recycling Program 
• Yard Waste Management Program 
• Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) 

Management Program 
• Scrap Tire Collection Program 
• Lead Acid Battery Collection Program 
• School Recycling Program 

• Education and Awareness Program 
• Commercial Technical Assistance 
• Industrial Technical Assistance 
• Waste Audit Manual 
• Data Collection and Database of Recycling Processors 
• Natural Disaster Management Program 
• General Plan Implementation 

 
Solid Waste Disposal Capacity 
 
This demonstration is one of the fundamental requirements of the solid waste plan.  The District conducted 
a regional capacity analysis that has demonstrated that there is enough disposal capacity for all of the solid 
waste generated by residents and businesses for the entire planning period.  



 

 

Goals 
 
The District meets or exceeds all of the State Solid Waste Management Plan goals as required by Ohio 
EPA.  The District has demonstrated that over 90% of each county has access to recycling such as curbside 
and drop-off programs.  
 
Residential/Commercial/Industrial Grant Programs 
 

  

*Grants will be offered to curbside recycling communities to improve their  
 performance and access to residents. 
 
Financing the Plan 
 
The District primarily funds Plan programs and current operations through contract fees, recycling revenue, 
reimbursements, and miscellaneous sources. As of December 12, 2018, a contract fee of $6.00 per ton 
was charged to all solid waste facilities that were designated by the District to receive District solid waste. 
This contract fee has remained unchanged since September 30, 2008. Contract fees are anticipated to 
remain unchanged during the first five years of the plan. The contract fee has the potential to increase to 
$7.00 per ton in 2026 then remain flat for the remainder of the planning period (2032). This fee increase 
will be discussed during the next plan update in five years. 
 
Your Community’s Responsibility 
 

Each community in Delaware, Knox, Marion, & Morrow County will be asked to 
approve the solid waste plan in 2019.  The process requires each community to:  
 

• Review a copy of the plan 
• Act on the plan within 90 days (December 12, 2018 –March 11, 2019) 

and  
• Submit a copy of the resolution or legislation to the District.   

 
Failure to act on the plan is considered by the State of Ohio to be a negative vote.  

 
What if the Plan is Not Ratified? 
 
If local ratification does not occur, the Director of Ohio EPA is required, by state statute, to prepare a plan 
for the District and order the District to implement the state’s plan.  This could negatively affect the District 
because local control of our plan would be relinquished to Ohio EPA.   
 
The plan you will vote on was developed through a local planning process and contains the 
recommendations, programs and initiatives from the District’s Policy Committee.  These programs and 
initiatives will provide for a cost effective and environmentally safe solid waste system for the District and 
will expand recycling opportunities and increase recycling participation.  The District urges communities to 
learn more about this plan in order to make an informed decision.  
 
For more information, contact the District at (740) 393-4600 or visit online at www.dkmm.org 
 
The link below is where you will find the entire solid waste plan and all appendices under “2019 - 2033 
DKMM Draft Plan”:  
 

https://www.dkmm.org/dkmm-plan 

• Ohio EPA Market Development Grants 
• Ohio EPA Community Development 

Grants 

• Recycling Program Grants* 
• Health Department Grants – Solid 

Waste Inspections & Monitoring 

http://www.dkmm.org/
https://www.dkmm.org/dkmm-plan


  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE:  02/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-02    RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       February 25, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 529 OF THE GENERAL OFFENSES 
CODE OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The City’s tenant in the former Gazette Building/City Hall Annex has indicated 
that it would like to provide alcohol in its space. The City Manager, having 
reviewed the tenant’s proposal, does not object to the alcohol plan and is 
inclined to grant permission under the lease.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
While there is no Delaware ordinance prohibiting alcohol in a municipal 
building, there are two code sections that prohibit the practice of providing 
alcohol proposed by the tenant.  While these sections have been in place for 
many years (possibly as far back as 1967), staff believes the sections are rarely, 
if ever enforced and have the impact of criminalizing legitimate activity.  The 
proposed language would therefore clean up the code and remove an obstacle 
to the tenant’s alcohol proposal. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval after second reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)  
None 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 529 OF THE 
GENERAL OFFENSES CODE OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has both the duty and authority to 

enact ordinances to protect the health, safety, and welfare of those within its 
borders, including the regulation of the sale of alcohol. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Delaware, 
State of Ohio:   
 
 SECTION 1.  Section 529.05 of the General Offenses Code is hereby 
amended.  
 
 529.05 – Permit required.  
 
 (a) No person personally or by the person’s clerk, agent or employee shall 
 manufacture, manufacture for sale, offer, keep or possess for sale, 
 furnish or sell, or solicit the purchase or sale of any beer or intoxicating 
 liquor in this Municipality, or transport, import or cause to be 
 transported or imported any beer, intoxicating liquor or alcohol on or 
 into this Municipality for delivery, use or sale, unless the person has 
 fully complied with Ohio R.C. Chapters 4301 and 4303 or is the holder of 
 a permit issued by the Division of Liquor Control and in force at the time. 
 (ORC 4303.25) 
 
 (b) Whoever violates this section is guilty of a minor misdemeanor.  

 
SECTION 2. Section 529.13 of the General Offenses Code is hereby 
amended. 
 
529.13—Storage of intoxicating liquor for consumption on premises. 
 
(a) No person, club, organization, association or company shall: 
 
 (1) Keep, set up, maintain or operate any place, structure, building 
 or conveyance for the purpose of providing a storage area wherein 
 members, their guests or other persons are allowed to keep and 
 maintain, for the purpose of consumption therein, intoxicating 
 liquor; or 
 
 (2) Occupy any place, structure, building or conveyance for the 
 purpose of providing a storage area wherein members, guests or 



 other persons are allowed to keep and maintain, for the purpose of 
 consumption therein, intoxicating liquor;. 
 
 (3) Receive, or offer or agree to receive, any person into any place, 
 structure, building or conveyance for the purpose of allowing such 
 person to consume or store liquors therein, or permit any person 
 to remain there for such purpose; or 
 
 (4) Reside in, enter or remain in any place, structure or building or 
 enter or remain in any conveyance for the purpose of storing or 
 consuming intoxicating liquor therein.  
 
    (b) This section shall not apply to any premises being operated under 
 the authority of a license issued by the Ohio Department of Liquor 
 Control, nor shall it apply to a private home.  
 
    (c)  Nothing in this section shall be construed to affect the right to     
 possess intoxicating liquor in a bona fide private residence or to 
 serve the same to guests therein.  
 
    (d)  Whoever violates this section is guilty of a misdemeanor of the  
  third degree.  

 
SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE:  02/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-03    RESOLUTION NO:   
  
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:   
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2019 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE FUNDING TO CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL A MEMORIAL STATUE 
TO RUTHERFORD B. HAYES DOWNTOWN AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
SANDUSKY AND WILLIAM STREETS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Rutherford B. Hayes Heritage Fund Committee 
Established in 2016 
 
March 14, 2016 an agreement creating a special project fund with the 
Delaware County Foundation was signed by Carolyn Kay Riggle representing 
the City of Delaware. The expiration date of March 14, 2019 was amended to 
March 14, 2022 by both parties in December of 2018. 
 
Project: “Rutherford B. Hayes Comes Home” 
    Mission: A project to bring appropriate recognition to, and educate the 
community about, the 19th president of the United States and Delaware’s 
native son, Rutherford B. Hayes. 
    Statue in plaza at southwest corner of Sandusky and William Street will be 
dedicated Friday October 4, 2019 
 
Committee members: 
Bill Rietz, Chair   Adam Haynes   Carolyn Riggle 



Sue Bennington   Frank Hickman   Deb Shatzer 
Susie Bibler    Jack Hilborn   Ric Stranges 
Scott Blackwell   Bill McCarty   Roger VanSickle 
Gene Buckingham  Donna Meyer   Susan Wells 
Brent Carson    Ted Miller   Lee Yoakum 
Maribeth Graham 
 
Work to date 

1. Selected sculptor for project in July 
2. Solidified design for statue and area in plaza property owner has 

designated for project 
3. Working with companies to secure bid to refurbish fountain feature. 
4. City drafting easement language with property owner. The city will be 

responsible for maintaining the statue and fountain. 
5. Fundraising effort started October 5, 2018 is currently at 55% of 

projected cost of $125,000.  
This includes pledges, outright gifts and gifts in kind.  

6. Secured space in Willis Education Center for the R.B. Hayes Center of 
American Political History 
Gifts in Kind paid for concept drawings. This is phase 2 of project to 
enhance the education commitment of mission statement. 
 

What Fund needs to pay 
1. Sculptor Alan Cottrill ($65,000) Half of statue cost is needed for Alan to 

begin statue. Remaining expense due Oct 4, 2019. 
2. Water feature company- cost to be determined 
3. Pedestal ($7,000) 
4. Crane for pedestal and statue installation ($1,000) 
5. Site preparation – cost to be determined 
6. Cleaning and sealing brick walls and limestone caps – cost to be 

determined 
7. Lighting – cost to be determined 
8. Poles and flags – cost to be determined 
9. Information signage – cost to be determined 

10. Donor recognition plaque – cost to be determined 
 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
The appropriation amount requested is $150,000 to cover phase 1 expenses of 
project (statue and fountain in plaza).  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
 



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)  
Grant Agreement 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2019 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
FUNDING TO CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL A MEMORIAL 
STATUE TO RUTHERFORD B. HAYES DOWNTOWN AT 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SANDUSKY AND 
WILLIAM STREETS, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Delaware County Foundation has established a fund to 

cover the costs of construction and maintenance of the Rutherford B. Hayes 
Memorial through donations; and 
 

WHEREAS, this fund was set up through the Foundation through an 
agreement signed on March 8, 2016 and then a subsequent addendum was 
executed on December 18, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, for administrative purposes the aforementioned agreement 
and addendum shall be immediately rescinded and the City Manager is hereby 
authorized to enter into a grant agreement (attached) with the Delaware County 
Foundation to accept funds collected for the Hayes Memorial; and 

 
WHEREAS, this expenditure was not included in the 2019 Appropriation 

Budget.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Parks Donation Fund $150,000 increasing the following account: 

 
Hayes Statue Downtown (702-7020-5507)   $   150,000 
 
SECTION 2.   The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a grant 
agreement (attached) with the Delaware County Foundation to accept 
funds collected for the Hayes memorial project. 

 
SECTION 3. Appropriated funds shall not be expended until received from 

the Delaware County Foundation pursuant to the grant agreement. 
 
SECTION 4. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 



formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
SECTION 5.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 

declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to provide for 
timely payments to the artist creating the Hayes statue such that the statue will 
be completed in time to be installed prior to the dedication later this year, and 
as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 
Grant Agreement 

 
PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN BY  

 
Recipient Information:  City of Delaware 
Amount: $ 
Fund Name:  
Purpose: Construction of the Rutherford B. Hayes Memorial in Delaware, Ohio 
Grant Date:  
Grant Number:   

  
By accepting this grant, your organization certifies to the Delaware County Foundation that: 
 
1) This grant is for the specific purpose(s) described below.  Any variation from the purpose must have 

prior written approval of the Foundation. 
a. Construction and maintenance of the Rutherford B. Hayes Memorial, including costs 

associated with site acquisition, design, construction, and maintenance of the display and 
surrounding area. 

b. Payment of $66,500 to Alan Cottrill, the sculptor selected by the Rutherford B. Hayes 
Comes Home Committee to create a statute. 

 
2) All funds not expended for the purposes agreed upon by the Grantee and the Foundation must be 

returned.  Funds also must be returned if the Grantee loses its 501(C)(3) tax exemption for the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1954 as amended. 

 
3) No tangible benefit, goods or services were provided to anyone connected with the fund of the 

Delaware County Foundation. 
 
4) This donation will not be used by you to satisfy the payment of any pledge or other financial obligation 

on behalf of the donor(s) per Section 6115 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
5) No part of the grant funds will be used to carry on propaganda, or otherwise attempt to influence 

legislation or to influence the outcome of any specific public election, or to carry on, directly or 
indirectly, any voter registration drive, or for any purpose which is not religious, charitable, scientific, 
or education.  

 
6) Grantee will maintain records adequate to verify actions related to this grant. 
 
7) We appreciate the Grantee acknowledging support from the Delaware County Foundation in its news 

releases, publicity, printed and electronic materials. Grantee agrees to provide photos of the project.  
We would appreciate receiving copies of any published information on the grant. Foundation logos 
are available upon request. (See enclosed Guidelines for Communication Your Grant for other 
publicity recommendations.)   

 
8) This grant is made with the understanding that the Foundation has made no commitment to provide 

additional support for this project. 
 
We agree to abide by the terms of this contract: 
 
      
 Signature of Executive Director Printed Name of Executive Director Date 
 
      
 Signature of the Board/Chair  Printed Name of Board/Chair Date 
 
 
Please return to: Delaware County Foundation 
   3954 North Hampton 



Powell OH 43065   Phone: (614) 764-2332 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 02/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-04    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2019 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR 
THE FUNDING, INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF AN ELECTRIC VEHICLE 
CHARGING STATION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff from the Public Works and Utility Departments have worked cooperatively 
over the last several months to prepare and submit a grant to the American 
Electric Power Company for funding for an Electric Vehicle charging station to 
be installed in Delaware.  Funding is provided through the AEP Ohio EV 
Charging Incentive Program.  The total project cost is $27,518, broken down as 
follows: $12,186 for equipment with 5-year support and warranty services; 
$11,705 for design and installation services; and $3,627 for in-kind work and 
materials by the City aiding in installation.   
 
The equipment includes a single Level 2 charging station with two charging 
ports, requiring 240-volt 30 Amp circuits, and capable of providing up to 26 
miles of range in an hour charge.  The charging station will be located in the 
south end of the East William Street public parking lot.  Installation costs are 
minimized at this location being in close proximity to an existing power supply, 
and the spaces will be highly visible from East William Street.  Charger units are 
owned by the City, however operated and maintained by ChargePoint under a 
five-year service agreement as provided through the AEP grant.   



  
To utilize the charging station, an EV operator, generally a subscriber to a 
ChargePoint account, activates the unit via phone App and then plugs their 
vehicle into the charging port.  Charges to the customer are conveyed through 
the customer account.  The local power company (AEP) sub-meters the EV 
charging station recording power consumption, and subsequently invoices the 
station owner (City) for the cost of energy used through monthly invoicing.  
ChargePoint collects all user charges directly and subsequently disburses 
payments to the City for associated energy and parking costs via an ACH 
transfer.       
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is required to establish the necessary funding to purchase and install 
the EV Charging station as described. Up to $20,000 of the project cost is 
reimbursable through the AEP grant.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Approved use of the parking spaces for EV charging units by Parking & Safety 
Committee. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
An additional $28,000 is being requested to cover the estimated total project 
costs.  $20,000 of the costs are reimbursable through the AEP grant upon 
completion of the project.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Because the EV charging station requires the use of both electric power and  
existing public parking spaces, the following policy is considered: 
 

1. The two parking spaces designated for electric vehicle charging will be 
signed as follows:  “Parking reserved for electric vehicles while actively 
charging.  4-Hour limit (8AM to 8PM)”.  This will allow for turnover of the 
spaces for multiple EV owners working or visiting the downtown area during 
hours of peak demand.  There is no recommended time limit for use of the 
charging station between 8PM and 8AM.  Parking rates of $0.25 per hour 
are recommended for these spaces to conform to the parking rates of 
adjacent public parking in the immediate vicinity.  Parking rates are 
collected through the EV charging station. 
 

2. Electric usage charges will be billed directly to the EV operator via their 
respective ChargePoint accounts at a proposed rate of $0.10 per kWh.  A 
typical electric vehicle will utilize 6 kW for an hours charge at a cost of $0.60. 
Through this pilot initiative, the City will be able to offer EV charging options 
and monitor the demand for and utility of EV charging stations within the 
City without having to pass privately consumed energy costs on to the 
community.  It should also be noted that under the current gas tax 



structure, EV owners do not currently pay a proportionate share of 
respective impacts to the operation and maintenance of the state and federal 
highway system.  Policy to address this inconsistency is under consideration 
in multiple states. 

 
3. Because all initial charging station maintenance and operation costs by 

ChargePoint are covered under the grant for five years, is not recommended 
to pass on these costs to the consumer at this time.  Future rates may be 
increased as additional costs  are incurred by the City. 

 
4. Additional EV charging stations may be considered if the pilot initiative 

supports a demand for an increase in the number of units.  An alternative 
approach to the City becoming the owner/operator of a proliferation of 
electric fueling stations, considers a program of leasing designated public 
parking spaces to private vendors responsible for the installation, 
maintenance and operation of EV charging stations.   

 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
Caroline Cicerchi, Watershed & Sustainability Coordinator 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at First Reading due to time sensitive agreement associated with grant 
funding. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Location Exhibit 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2019 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE AND AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS 
FOR THE FUNDING, INSTALLATION AND OPERATION 
OF AN ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATION, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has applied for and received grant funding 

from the American Electric Power Company for the installation of one, dual-port 
publically accessible electric vehicle charging station; and 

 
WHEREAS, the electric vehicle charging station will be installed at the 

south end of the public parking lot on East William Street adjacent to the BP 
fueling station; and  

  
WHEREAS, the charging station will allow for two vehicles to be charged 

simultaneously in adjacent parking spaces; and  
 
WHEREAS, the installation must be complete within ninety days of grant 

approval; and  
 
WHEREAS, the 2019 appropriations ordinance did not include funding for 

this initiative; and 
 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation will be necessary to fund the 

design and installation of the electric vehicle charging stations.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Capital Improvement Fund $28,000 increasing the following 
account: 

 
Parking Lot Improvements (410-4118-5533)  $28,000 
 
 
SECTION 2. That the city manager is hereby authorized to enter into 

necessary agreements with vendors, contractors and energy suppliers necessary 
for the installation and operation of the electric vehicle charging station.   

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 



deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
 SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to provide for 
the timely design and installation of equipment in accordance with terms of grant 
requirements, and as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

Dual Port EV “ChargePoint” 
Charging Station 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 02/11/2019    
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-05    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF BONDS IN 
THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8,000,000, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF VARIOUS PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS, TOGETHER WITH ALL RELATED APPURTENANCES 
THERETO, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

BACKGROUND: 
This ordinance authorizes the issuance of ten year general obligation bonds to 
finalize the financing of the Glenn Road improvements.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The one-year notes issued last year mature on April 10, 2019.  Long-term bonds 
will be issued to pay off the maturing notes and establish the debt service 
amounts over the ten year term of the bonds.  Issuing bonds this year will 
eliminate the annual re-issuance of the short-term notes.  The debt service on 
the bonds will come from the annual 7.5 mill charge assessed on properties in 
the New Community Authority (NCA) area. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  
Finance Committee - Approval 
 
 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
None for the City.  Will reduce final interest charges paid by residents in the NCA 
area.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dean Stelzer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at first reading with emergency clause. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Fiscal Officer’s Certificate 
Memo from Finance Director 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 19-05 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE 
AND SALE OF BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $8,000,000, 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE COSTS OF 
VARIOUS PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS, TOGETHER WITH ALL RELATED 
APPURTENANCES THERETO, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 18-09 passed February 12, 2018, 
notes in anticipation of bonds in the aggregate amount of $10,265,000, dated 
April 11, 2018 (the “Outstanding Notes”), were issued, in part, for the 
component purposes described in Section 2, to mature on April 10, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council finds and determines that the City should 
retire the Outstanding Notes with the proceeds of the Bonds described in 
Section 2 and other funds available to the City; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council has requested that the Director of Finance, 
as fiscal officer of this City, certify the estimated life or period of usefulness of 
each component purpose of the Improvement described in Section 2 and the 
maximum maturity of the Bonds described in Section 2; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance has certified to this City Council that 
the estimated life or period of usefulness of each component purpose of the 
Improvement is at least five (5) years and that the maximum maturity of the 
Bonds is (a) twelve (12) years with respect to the component purpose described 
in clause (a) of Section 2 and (b) fifteen (15) years with respect to the 
component purpose described in clause (b) of Section 2; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by The Council of The City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio, that: 

Section 1.  Definitions and Interpretation.  In addition to the words and 
terms elsewhere defined in this Ordinance, unless the context or use clearly 
indicates another or different meaning or intent: 

“Authorized Denominations” means the denomination of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple in excess thereof. 

“Bond Proceedings” means, collectively, this Ordinance, the Certificate of 
Award, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Purchase Agreement (if any), 
the Registrar Agreement and such other proceedings of the City, including the 
Bonds, that provide collectively for, among other things, the rights of holders 
and beneficial owners of the Bonds. 



- 2 - 

“Bond Register” means all books and records necessary for the 
registration, exchange and transfer of Bonds as provided in Section 5. 

“Bond Registrar” means a bank or trust company authorized to do 
business in the State of Ohio and designated by the Director of Finance in the 
Certificate of Award pursuant to Section 4 as the initial authenticating agent, 
bond registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for the Bonds under the 
Registrar Agreement and until a successor Bond Registrar shall have become 
such pursuant to the provisions of the Registrar Agreement and, thereafter, 
“Bond Registrar” shall mean the successor Bond Registrar. 

“Bonds” means, collectively, the Serial Bonds and the Term Bonds, each 
as is designated as such in the Certificate of Award. 

“Book entry form” or “book entry system” means a form or system under 
which (a) the ownership of beneficial interests in the Bonds and the principal of 
and interest and any premium on the Bonds may be transferred only through a 
book entry, and (b) physical Bond certificates in fully registered form are issued 
by the City and payable only to a Depository or its nominee as registered 
owner, with the certificates deposited with and “immobilized” in the custody of 
the Depository or its designated agent for that purpose.  The book entry 
maintained by others than the City is the record that identifies the owners of 
beneficial interests in the Bonds and that principal and interest. 

“Certificate of Award” means the certificate authorized by Section 6, to be 
executed by the Director of Finance, setting forth and determining those terms 
or other matters pertaining to the Bonds and their issuance, sale and delivery 
as this Ordinance requires or authorizes to be set forth or determined therein. 

“City Attorney” means the City Attorney of the City or any person serving 
in an interim or acting capacity with respect to that office. 

“City Clerk” means the City Clerk of the City Council or any person 
serving in an interim or acting capacity with respect to that office. 

“City Manager” means the City Manager of the City or any person serving 
in an interim or acting capacity with respect to that office. 

“Closing Date” means the date of physical delivery of, and payment of the 
purchase price for, the Bonds. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, the Regulations 
(whether temporary or final) under that Code or the statutory predecessor of 
that Code, and any amendments of, or successor provisions to, the foregoing 
and any official rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and judicial 
determinations regarding any of the foregoing, all as and to the extent 
applicable.  Unless otherwise indicated, reference to a Section of the Code 



- 3 - 

includes any applicable successor section or provision and such applicable 
Regulations, rulings, announcements, notices, procedures and determinations 
pertinent to that Section. 

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement which shall constitute the continuing disclosure agreement made by 
the City for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds in 
accordance with the Rule, as it may be modified from the form on file with the 
City Clerk and executed by the City Manager and the Director of Finance, all in 
accordance with Section 9(c). 

“Depository” means any securities depository that is a clearing agency 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, operating and maintaining, with its Participants or otherwise, a 
book entry system to record ownership of beneficial interests in the Bonds or 
the principal of and interest and any premium on the Bonds, and to effect 
transfers of the Bonds, in book entry form, and includes and means initially 
The Depository Trust Company (a limited purpose trust company), New York, 
New York. 

“Director of Finance” means the Director of Finance of the City or any 
person serving in an interim or acting capacity with respect to that office. 

“Financing Costs” shall have the meaning given in Section 133.01 of the 
Ohio Revised Code. 

“Interest Payment Dates” means June 1 and December 1 of each year 
that the Bonds are outstanding, commencing on the date specified in the 
Certificate of Award. 

“Mandatory Redemption Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 
3(b). 

“Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements” shall have the 
meaning set forth in Section 3(e)(i). 

“Original Purchaser” means the purchaser of the Bonds specified in the 
Certificate of Award. 

“Participant” means any participant contracting with a Depository under 
a book entry system and includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and 
trust companies and clearing corporations. 

“Principal Payment Dates” means December 1 in each of the years from 
and including 2019 to and including 2028; provided that for each component 
purpose, the first Principal Payment Date may be deferred up to one year and 
the last Principal Payment Date may be advanced by such number of years as 



- 4 - 

determined necessary by the Director of Finance and deferred up to (a) two 
years for the portion of the Bonds allocated to the component purpose 
described in clause (a) of Section 2 and (b) five years for the portion of the 
Bonds allocated to the component purpose described in clause (b) of Section 2, 
and provided further that in no case shall the final Principal Payment Date of 
any portion of the Bonds issued for any component purpose exceed the 
maximum maturity limitation referred to in the preambles hereto for that 
component purpose, all of which determinations shall be made by the Director 
of Finance in the Certificate of Award in such manner as to be in the best 
interest of and financially advantageous to the City. 

“Purchase Agreement” means the Bond Purchase Agreement between the 
City and the Original Purchaser, as it may be modified from the form on file 
with the City Clerk and executed by the City Manager and the Director of 
Finance, all in accordance with Section 6. 

“Registrar Agreement” means the Bond Registrar Agreement between the 
City and the Bond Registrar, as it may be modified from the form on file with 
the City Clerk and executed by the City Manager and the Director of Finance, 
all in accordance with Section 4. 

“Regulations” means Treasury Regulations issued pursuant to the Code 
or to the statutory predecessor of the Code. 

“Rule” means Rule 15c2-12 prescribed by the SEC pursuant to the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“Serial Bonds” means those Bonds designated as such and maturing on 
the dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable on each 
Interest Payment Date and not subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption. 

“Term Bonds” means those Bonds designated as such and maturing on 
the date or dates set forth in the Certificate of Award, bearing interest payable 
on each Interest Payment Date and subject to mandatory sinking fund 
redemption. 

The captions and headings in this Ordinance are solely for convenience 
of reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any 
Sections, subsections, paragraphs, subparagraphs or clauses hereof.  
Reference to a Section means a section of this Ordinance unless otherwise 
indicated. 

Section 2.  Authorized Principal Amount and Purpose; Application of 
Proceeds.  This City Council determines that it is necessary and in the best 
interest of the City to issue bonds of this City in the maximum aggregate 



- 5 - 

principal amount of $8,000,000 (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of paying the 
costs of (a) constructing Glenn Road between certain termini by constructing, 
excavating, grading and paving, installing drainage, sanitary sewer laterals, 
street lighting, conduit, curbs and gutters, signage, traffic pavement markings, 
street signs, landscaping, and acquiring interests in real estate, together with 
all necessary appurtenances thereto and (b) improving the intersection of U.S. 
Route 23 and Peachblow Road by constructing, excavating, grading and 
paving, installing drainage, street lighting, conduit, signalization, curbs and 
gutters, signage, traffic pavement markings, landscaping, and acquiring 
interests in real estate, together with all necessary appurtenances thereto 
(collectively, the “Improvement”).  The Bonds shall be issued pursuant to 
Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code, the Charter of the City, this Ordinance 
and the Certificate of Award. 

The aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued shall not exceed 
the maximum aggregate principal amount specified in this Section 2 and shall 
be an amount determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award 
to be the aggregate principal amount of Bonds that is required to be issued at 
this time for the component purposes stated in this Section 2, taking into 
account the costs of refunding the Outstanding Notes, the estimates of the 
Financing Costs and the interest rates on the Bonds. 

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds received by the City (or withheld 
by the Original Purchaser on behalf of the City) shall be paid into the proper 
fund or funds, and those proceeds are hereby appropriated and shall be used 
for the purpose for which the Bonds are being issued, including without 
limitation but only to the extent not paid by others, the payment of the costs of 
issuing and servicing the Bonds, printing and delivery of the Bonds, legal 
services including obtaining the approving legal opinion of bond counsel, fees 
and expenses of any municipal advisor, paying agent and rating agency, any 
fees or premiums relating to municipal bond insurance or other security 
arrangements determined necessary by the Director of Finance, and all other 
Financing Costs and costs incurred incidental to those purposes.  The 
Certificate of Award and the Purchase Agreement (if any) may authorize the 
Original Purchaser to withhold certain proceeds from the purchase price of the 
Bonds to provide for the payment of Financing Costs related to the Bonds on 
behalf of the City.  Any portion of those proceeds received by the City 
representing premium (after payment of any Financing Costs identified in the 
Certificate of Award, and in the Purchase Agreement (if any) and/or the 
Registrar Agreement) or accrued interest shall be paid into the Bond 
Retirement Fund. 

Section 3.  Denominations; Dating; Principal and Interest Payment and 
Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds shall be issued in one lot and only as fully 
registered bonds, in Authorized Denominations, but in no case as to a 
particular maturity date exceeding the principal amount maturing on that date.  



- 6 - 

The Bonds shall be dated as provided in the Certificate of Award, provided that 
their dated date shall not be more than sixty (60) days prior to the Closing 
Date. 

(a) Interest Rates and Payment Dates.  The Bonds shall bear interest 
at the rate or rates per year (computed on the basis of a 360-day year 
consisting of twelve 30-day months) as shall be determined by the Director of 
Finance, subject to subsection (c) of this Section 3, in the Certificate of Award.  
Interest on the Bonds shall be payable at such rate or rates on the Interest 
Payment Dates until the principal amount has been paid or provided for.  The 
Bonds shall bear interest from the most recent date to which interest has been 
paid or provided for or, if no interest has been paid or provided for, from their 
date. 

(b) Principal Payment Schedule.  The Bonds shall mature or be 
payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements on 
the Principal Payment Dates in principal amounts as shall be determined by 
the Director of Finance, subject to subsection (c) of this Section 3, in the 
Certificate of Award, which determination shall be in the best interest of and 
financially advantageous to the City. 

Consistent with the foregoing and in accordance with the determination 
of the best interest of and financially advantageous to the City, the Director of 
Finance shall specify in the Certificate of Award (i) the aggregate principal 
amount of Bonds to be issued as Serial Bonds, the Principal Payment Date or 
Dates on which those Bonds shall be stated to mature and the principal 
amount thereof that shall be stated to mature on each such Principal Payment 
Date, and (ii) the aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be issued as Term 
Bonds, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on which those Bonds shall be 
stated to mature, the principal amount thereof that shall be stated to mature 
on each such Principal Payment Date, the Principal Payment Date or Dates on 
which Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption 
(each a “Mandatory Redemption Date”) and the principal amount thereof that 
shall be payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption 
Requirements on each Mandatory Redemption Date. 

(c) Conditions for Establishment of Interest Rates and Principal 
Payment Dates and Amounts.  The rate or rates of interest per year to be borne 
by the Bonds, and the aggregate principal amount of Bonds maturing or 
payable pursuant to Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements on 
each Principal Payment Date, shall be such that the total principal and interest 
payments on the Bonds issued for each component purpose in any fiscal year 
in which principal is payable is not more than three times the amount of those 
payments in any other fiscal year.  The net interest cost for the Bonds 
determined by taking into account the respective principal amounts of the 



- 7 - 

Bonds and terms to maturity or Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption 
Requirements of those principal amounts of Bonds shall not exceed 6.00%. 

(d) Payment of Debt Charges.  The debt charges on the Bonds shall be 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America without deduction for 
the services of the Bond Registrar as paying agent.  Principal of and any 
premium on the Bonds shall be payable when due upon presentation and 
surrender of the Bonds at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond 
Registrar.  Interest on a Bond shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date by 
check or draft mailed to the person in whose name the Bond was registered, 
and to that person’s address appearing, on the Bond Register at the close of 
business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding that Interest 
Payment Date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if and so long as the Bonds are 
issued in a book entry system, principal of and interest and any premium on 
the Bonds shall be payable in the manner provided in any agreement entered 
into by the Director of Finance, in the name and on behalf of the City, in 
connection with the book entry system. 

(e) Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds shall be subject to redemption 
prior to stated maturity as follows: 

(i) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Term Bonds.  If any 
of the Bonds are issued as Term Bonds, the Term Bonds shall be subject 
to mandatory redemption in part by lot and be redeemed pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption requirements, at a redemption price 
of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the 
redemption date, on the applicable Mandatory Redemption Dates and in 
the principal amounts payable on those Dates, for which provision is 
made in the Certificate of Award (such Dates and amounts being referred 
to as the “Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements”). 

The aggregate of the moneys to be deposited with the Bond 
Registrar for payment of principal of and interest on any Term Bonds on 
each Mandatory Redemption Date shall include an amount sufficient to 
redeem on that Date the principal amount of Term Bonds payable on 
that Date pursuant to the Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption 
Requirements (less the amount of any credit as hereinafter provided). 

The City shall have the option to deliver to the Bond Registrar for 
cancellation Term Bonds in any aggregate principal amount and to 
receive a credit against the then current or any subsequent Mandatory 
Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory 
redemption obligation) of the City, as specified by the Director of Finance, 
for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date 
and bearing interest at the same rate as the Term Bonds so delivered.  
That option shall be exercised by the City on or before the 45th day 



- 8 - 

preceding any Mandatory Redemption Date with respect to which the 
City wishes to obtain a credit, by furnishing the Bond Registrar a 
certificate, signed by the Director of Finance, setting forth the extent of 
the credit to be applied with respect to the then current or any 
subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement for Term 
Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date and bearing 
interest at the same rate as the Term Bonds so delivered.  If the 
certificate is not timely furnished to the Bond Registrar, the current 
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement (and corresponding 
mandatory redemption obligation) shall not be reduced.  A credit against 
the then current or any subsequent Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Redemption Requirement (and corresponding mandatory redemption 
obligation), as specified by the Director of Finance, also shall be received 
by the City for any Term Bonds which prior thereto have been redeemed 
(other than through the operation of the applicable Mandatory Sinking 
Fund Redemption Requirements) or purchased for cancellation and 
canceled by the Bond Registrar, to the extent not applied theretofore as a 
credit against any Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirement, 
for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal Payment Date 
and bearing interest at the same rate as the Term Bonds so delivered, 
redeemed or purchased and canceled. 

Each Term Bond so delivered, or previously redeemed, or 
purchased and canceled, shall be credited by the Bond Registrar at 100% 
of the principal amount thereof against the then current or subsequent 
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Requirements (and corresponding 
mandatory redemption obligations), as specified by the Director of 
Finance, for Term Bonds stated to mature on the same Principal 
Payment Date and bearing interest at the same rate as the Term Bonds 
so delivered, redeemed or purchased and canceled. 

(ii) Optional Redemption.  The Bonds of the maturities and 
interest rates specified in the Certificate of Award (if any are so specified) 
shall be subject to optional redemption by and at the sole option of the 
City, in whole or in part in integral multiples of $5,000, on the dates and 
at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal 
amount to be redeemed), plus accrued interest to the redemption date, to 
be determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of Award; 
provided that the redemption price for any optional redemption date shall 
not be greater than 103%. 

If optional redemption of Term Bonds at a redemption price 
exceeding 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed is to take place 
as of any Mandatory Redemption Date applicable to those Term Bonds, 
the Term Bonds, or portions thereof, to be redeemed optionally shall be 
selected by lot prior to the selection by lot of the Term Bonds of the same 



- 9 - 

maturity (and interest rate within a maturity if applicable) to be 
redeemed on the same date by operation of the Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Redemption Requirements.  Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to this 
paragraph shall be redeemed only upon written notice from the Director 
of Finance to the Bond Registrar, given upon the direction of the City by 
passage of an ordinance or adoption of a resolution.  That notice shall 
specify the redemption date and the principal amount of each maturity 
(and interest rate within a maturity if applicable) of Bonds to be 
redeemed, and shall be given at least 45 days prior to the redemption 
date or such shorter period as shall be acceptable to the Bond Registrar. 

(iii) Partial Redemption.  If fewer than all of the outstanding 
Bonds are called for optional redemption at one time and Bonds of more 
than one maturity (or interest rate within a maturity if applicable) are 
then outstanding, the Bonds that are called shall be Bonds of the 
maturity or maturities and interest rate or rates selected by the City.  If 
fewer than all of the Bonds of a single maturity (or interest rate within a 
maturity if applicable) are to be redeemed, the selection of Bonds of that 
maturity (or interest rate within a maturity if applicable) to be redeemed, 
or portions thereof in amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, 
shall be made by the Bond Registrar by lot in a manner determined by 
the Bond Registrar.  In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot 
when Bonds of denominations greater than $5,000 are then outstanding, 
each $5,000 unit of principal thereof shall be treated as if it were a 
separate Bond of the denomination of $5,000.  If it is determined that 
one or more, but not all, of the $5,000 units of principal amount 
represented by a Bond are to be called for redemption, then, upon notice 
of redemption of a $5,000 unit or units, the registered owner of that 
Bond shall surrender the Bond to the Bond Registrar (A) for payment of 
the redemption price of the $5,000 unit or units of principal amount 
called for redemption (including, without limitation, the interest accrued 
to the date fixed for redemption and any premium), and (B) for issuance, 
without charge to the registered owner, of a new Bond or Bonds of any 
Authorized Denomination or Denominations in an aggregate principal 
amount equal to the unmatured and unredeemed portion of, and bearing 
interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date as, the Bond 
surrendered. 

(iv) Notice of Redemption.  The notice of the call for redemption 
of Bonds shall identify (A) by designation, letters, numbers or other 
distinguishing marks, the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, (B) 
the redemption price to be paid, (C) the date fixed for redemption, and (D) 
the place or places where the amounts due upon redemption are payable.  
The notice shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the City by 
mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first-class mail, postage 
prepaid, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, to the 



- 10 - 

registered owner of each Bond subject to redemption in whole or in part 
at the registered owner’s address shown on the Bond Register 
maintained by the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th 
day preceding that mailing.  Failure to receive notice by mail or any 
defect in that notice regarding any Bond, however, shall not affect the 
validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond. 

(v) Payment of Redeemed Bonds.  In the event that notice of 
redemption shall have been given by the Bond Registrar to the registered 
owners as provided above, there shall be deposited with the Bond 
Registrar on or prior to the redemption date, moneys that, in addition to 
any other moneys available therefor and held by the Bond Registrar, will 
be sufficient to redeem at the redemption price thereof, plus accrued 
interest to the redemption date, all of the redeemable Bonds for which 
notice of redemption has been given.  Notice having been mailed in the 
manner provided in the preceding paragraph hereof, the Bonds and 
portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on 
the redemption date, and, subject to the provisions of Sections 3(d) and 
5, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the place or places 
specified in that notice, shall be paid at the redemption price, plus 
accrued interest to the redemption date.  If moneys for the redemption of 
all of the Bonds and portions thereof to be redeemed, together with 
accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, are held by the Bond 
Registrar on the redemption date, so as to be available therefor on that 
date and, if notice of redemption has been deposited in the mail as 
aforesaid, then from and after the redemption date those Bonds and 
portions thereof called for redemption shall cease to bear interest and no 
longer shall be considered to be outstanding.  If those moneys shall not 
be so available on the redemption date, or that notice shall not have been 
deposited in the mail as aforesaid, those Bonds and portions thereof 
shall continue to bear interest, until they are paid, at the same rate as 
they would have borne had they not been called for redemption.  All 
moneys held by the Bond Registrar for the redemption of particular 
Bonds shall be held in trust for the account of the registered owners 
thereof and shall be paid to them, respectively, upon presentation and 
surrender of those Bonds; provided that any interest earned on the 
moneys so held by the Bond Registrar shall be for the account of and 
paid to the City to the extent not required for the payment of the Bonds 
called for redemption. 

Section 4.  Execution and Authentication of Bonds; Appointment of Bond 
Registrar.  The Bonds shall be signed by the City Manager and the Director of 
Finance, in the name of the City and in their official capacities; provided that 
either or both of those signatures may be a facsimile.  The Bonds shall be 
issued in the Authorized Denominations and numbers as requested by the 
Original Purchaser and approved by the Director of Finance, shall be 



- 11 - 

numbered as determined by the Director of Finance in order to distinguish 
each Bond from any other Bond, and shall express upon their faces the 
purpose, in summary terms, for which they are issued and that they are issued 
pursuant to Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code, the Charter of the City, this 
Ordinance and the Certificate of Award. 

The Director of Finance is hereby authorized to designate in the 
Certificate of Award a bank or trust company authorized to do business in the 
State of Ohio to act as the initial Bond Registrar.  The City Manager and the 
Director of Finance shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the 
City, the Registrar Agreement between the City and the Bond Registrar, in 
substantially the form as is now on file with the City Clerk.  The Registrar 
Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments that are not 
inconsistent with this Ordinance and not substantially adverse to the City and 
that are approved by the City Manager and the Director of Finance on behalf of 
the City, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing of the 
Registrar Agreement or amendments thereto.  The Director of Finance shall 
provide for the payment of the services rendered and for reimbursement of 
expenses incurred pursuant to the Registrar Agreement, except to the extent 
paid or reimbursed by the Original Purchaser and/or the Bond Registrar 
pursuant to the Certificate of Award, the Purchase Agreement (if any) and/or 
the Registrar Agreement, from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available 
and then from other money lawfully available and appropriated or to be 
appropriated for that purpose. 

No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled 
to any security or benefit under the Bond Proceedings unless and until the 
certificate of authentication printed on the Bond is signed by the Bond 
Registrar as authenticating agent.  Authentication by the Bond Registrar shall 
be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly issued, 
signed and delivered under, and is entitled to the security and benefit of, the 
Bond Proceedings.  The certificate of authentication may be signed by any 
authorized officer or employee of the Bond Registrar or by any other person 
acting as an agent of the Bond Registrar and approved by the Director of 
Finance on behalf of the City.  The same person need not sign the certificate of 
authentication on all of the Bonds. 

Section 5.  Registration; Transfer and Exchange; Book Entry System. 

(a) Bond Register.  So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, 
the City will cause the Bond Registrar to maintain and keep the Bond Register 
at its designated corporate trust office.  Subject to the provisions of Sections 
3(d) and 9(c), the person in whose name a Bond is registered on the Bond 
Register shall be regarded as the absolute owner of that Bond for all purposes 
of the Bond Proceedings.  Payment of or on account of the debt charges on any 
Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of that person; neither the City 



- 12 - 

nor the Bond Registrar shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the 
registration may be changed as provided in this Section 5.  All such payments 
shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the City’s liability upon the 
Bond, including interest, to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid. 

(b) Transfer and Exchange.  Any Bond may be exchanged for Bonds of 
any Authorized Denomination upon presentation and surrender at the 
designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar, together with a request 
for exchange signed by the registered owner or by a person legally empowered 
to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar.  A Bond may be 
transferred only on the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender of the 
Bond at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar together 
with an assignment signed by the registered owner or by a person legally 
empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar.  Upon 
exchange or transfer the Bond Registrar shall complete, authenticate and 
deliver a new Bond or Bonds of any Authorized Denomination or 
Denominations requested by the owner equal in the aggregate to the 
unmatured principal amount of the Bond surrendered and bearing interest at 
the same rate and maturing on the same date. 

If manual signatures on behalf of the City are required, the Bond 
Registrar shall undertake the exchange or transfer of Bonds only after the new 
Bonds are signed by the authorized officers of the City.  In all cases of Bonds 
exchanged or transferred, the City shall sign and the Bond Registrar shall 
authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Bond 
Proceedings.  The exchange or transfer shall be without charge to the owner, 
except that the City and Bond Registrar may make a charge sufficient to 
reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid 
with respect to the exchange or transfer.  The City or the Bond Registrar may 
require that those charges, if any, be paid before the procedure is begun for the 
exchange or transfer.  All Bonds issued and authenticated upon any exchange 
or transfer shall be valid obligations of the City, evidencing the same debt, and 
entitled to the same security and benefit under the Bond Proceedings as the 
Bonds surrendered upon that exchange or transfer.  Neither the City nor the 
Bond Registrar shall be required to make any exchange or transfer of (i) Bonds 
then subject to call for redemption between the 15th day preceding the mailing 
of notice of Bonds to be redeemed and the date of that mailing, or (ii) any Bond 
selected for redemption, in whole or in part. 

(c) Book Entry System.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of this 
Ordinance, if the Director of Finance determines in the Certificate of Award 
that it is in the best interest of and financially advantageous to the City, the 
Bonds may be issued in book entry form in accordance with the following 
provisions of this Section 5. 



- 13 - 

The Bonds may be issued to a Depository for use in a book entry system 
and, if and so long as a book entry system is utilized: (i) the Bonds may be 
issued in the form of a single, fully registered Bond representing each maturity, 
and, if applicable, each interest rate within a maturity, and registered in the 
name of the Depository or its nominee, as registered owner, and immobilized in 
the custody of the Depository or its designated agent for that purpose, which 
may be the Bond Registrar; (ii) the beneficial owners of Bonds in book entry 
form shall not have any right to receive Bonds in the form of physical securities 
or certificates; (iii) ownership of beneficial interests in Bonds in book entry form 
shall be shown by book entry on the system maintained and operated by the 
Depository and its Participants, and transfers of the ownership of beneficial 
interests shall be made only by book entry by the Depository and its 
Participants; and (iv) the Bonds as such shall not be transferable or 
exchangeable, except for transfer to another Depository or to another nominee 
of a Depository, without further action by the City. 

If any Depository determines not to continue to act as a Depository for 
the Bonds for use in a book entry system, the Director of Finance may attempt 
to establish a securities depository/book entry relationship with another 
qualified Depository.  If the Director of Finance does not or is unable to do so, 
the Director of Finance, after making provision for notification of the beneficial 
owners by the then Depository and any other arrangements deemed necessary, 
shall permit withdrawal of the Bonds from the Depository, and shall cause 
Bond certificates in registered form and Authorized Denominations to be 
authenticated by the Bond Registrar and delivered to the assigns of the 
Depository or its nominee, all at the cost and expense (including any costs of 
printing), if the event is not the result of City action or inaction, of those 
persons requesting such issuance. 

The Director of Finance is hereby authorized and directed, to the extent 
necessary or required, to enter into any agreements, in the name and on behalf 
of the City, that the Director of Finance determines to be necessary in 
connection with a book entry system for the Bonds. 

Section 6.  Sale of the Bonds to the Original Purchaser.  The Director of 
Finance is authorized to sell the Bonds at private sale to the Original Purchaser 
at a purchase price, not less than 97% of the aggregate principal amount 
thereof, as shall be determined by the Director of Finance in the Certificate of 
Award, plus accrued interest (if any) on the Bonds from their date to the 
Closing Date, and shall be awarded by the Director of Finance with and upon 
such other terms as are required or authorized by this Ordinance to be 
specified in the Certificate of Award, in accordance with law and the provisions 
of this Ordinance and the Purchase Agreement (if any).  The Director of Finance 
is authorized, if it is determined to be in the best interest of the City, to 
combine the issue of Bonds with one or more other bond issues of the City into 
a consolidated bond issue pursuant to Section 133.30(B) of the Ohio Revised 



- 14 - 

Code in which case a single Certificate of Award may be utilized for the 
consolidated bond issue if appropriate and consistent with the terms of this 
Ordinance. 

The Director of Finance shall sign and deliver the Certificate of Award 
and shall cause the Bonds to be prepared and signed and delivered, together 
with a true transcript of proceedings with reference to the issuance of the 
Bonds, to the Original Purchaser upon payment of the purchase price. 

To the extent that the Director of Finance determines it would be 
financially advantageous to the City, the City Manager and the Director of 
Finance shall sign and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the City, the 
Purchase Agreement between the City and the Original Purchaser, in 
substantially the form as is now on file with the City Clerk, providing for the 
sale to, and the purchase by, the Original Purchaser of the Bonds.  The 
Purchase Agreement is approved, together with any changes or amendments 
that are not inconsistent with this Ordinance and not substantially adverse to 
the City and that are approved by the City Manager and the Director of Finance 
on behalf of the City, all of which shall be conclusively evidenced by the signing 
of the Purchase Agreement or amendments thereto. 

The Mayor, the City Manager, the Director of Finance, the City Attorney, 
the City Clerk and other City officials, as appropriate, and any person serving 
in an interim or acting capacity for any such official, are each authorized and 
directed to sign any transcript certificates, financial statements and other 
documents and instruments and to take such actions as are necessary or 
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Ordinance.  
The actions of the Mayor, the City Manager, the Director of Finance, the City 
Attorney, the City Clerk or other City official, as appropriate, in doing any and 
all acts necessary in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds are 
hereby ratified and confirmed. 

Section 7.  Provision for Tax Levy.  There shall be levied on all the taxable 
property in the City, in addition to all other taxes, a direct tax annually during 
the period the Bonds are outstanding in an amount sufficient to pay the debt 
charges on the Bonds when due, which tax shall not be less than the interest 
and sinking fund tax required by Section 11 of Article XII of the Ohio 
Constitution.  The tax shall be within the ten-mill limitation imposed by law, 
shall be and is ordered computed, certified, levied and extended upon the tax 
duplicate and collected by the same officers, in the same manner and at the 
same time that taxes for general purposes for each of those years are certified, 
levied, extended and collected, and shall be placed before and in preference to 
all other items and for the full amount thereof.  The proceeds of the tax levy 
shall be placed in the Bond Retirement Fund, which is irrevocably pledged for 
the payment of the debt charges on the Bonds when and as the same fall due. 



- 15 - 

In each year to the extent receipts from the municipal income tax are 
available for the payment of the debt charges on the Bonds and are 
appropriated for that purpose, the amount of the tax shall be reduced by the 
amount of such receipts so available and appropriated in compliance with the 
following covenant.  To the extent necessary, the debt charges on the Bonds 
shall be paid from municipal income taxes lawfully available therefor under the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Ohio and the Charter of the City; and the 
City hereby covenants, subject and pursuant to such authority, including 
particularly Section 133.05(B)(7) of the Ohio Revised Code, to appropriate 
annually from such municipal income taxes such amount as is necessary to 
meet such annual debt charges. 

Nothing in the preceding paragraph in any way diminishes the 
irrevocable pledge of the full faith and credit and general property taxing power 
of the City to the prompt payment of the debt charges on the Bonds. 

Section 8.  Federal Tax Considerations.  The City covenants that it will 
use, and will restrict the use and investment of, the proceeds of the Bonds in 
such manner and to such extent as may be necessary so that (a) the Bonds will 
not (i) constitute private activity bonds or arbitrage bonds under Sections 141 
or 148 of the Code or (ii) be treated other than as bonds the interest on which 
is excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the Code, and (b) the 
interest on the Bonds will not be an item of tax preference under Section 57 of 
the Code. 

The City further covenants that (a) it will take or cause to be taken such 
actions that may be required of it for the interest on the Bonds to be and 
remain excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (b) it will 
not take or authorize to be taken any actions that would adversely affect that 
exclusion, and (c) it, or persons acting for it, will, among other acts of 
compliance, (i) apply the proceeds of the Bonds to the governmental purpose of 
the borrowing, (ii) restrict the yield on investment property, (iii) make timely 
and adequate payments to the federal government, (iv) maintain books and 
records and make calculations and reports and (v) refrain from certain uses of 
those proceeds, and, as applicable, of property financed with such proceeds, all 
in such manner and to the extent necessary to assure such exclusion of that 
interest under the Code. 

The Director of Finance or any other officer of the City having 
responsibility for issuance of the Bonds is hereby authorized (a) to make or 
effect any election, selection, designation, choice, consent, approval, or waiver 
on behalf of the City with respect to the Bonds as the City is permitted to or 
required to make or give under the federal income tax laws, including, without 
limitation thereto, any of the elections available under Section 148 of the Code, 
for the purpose of assuring, enhancing or protecting favorable tax treatment or 
status of the Bonds or interest thereon or assisting compliance with 



- 16 - 

requirements for that purpose, reducing the burden or expense of such 
compliance, reducing the rebate amount or payments or penalties with respect 
to the Bonds, or making payments of special amounts in lieu of making 
computations to determine, or paying, excess earnings as rebate, or obviating 
those amounts or payments with respect to the Bonds, which action shall be in 
writing and signed by the officer, (b) to take any and all other actions, make or 
obtain calculations, make payments, and make or give reports, covenants and 
certifications of and on behalf of the City, as may be appropriate to assure the 
exclusion of interest from gross income and the intended tax status of the 
Bonds, and (c) to give one or more appropriate certificates of the City, for 
inclusion in the transcript of proceedings for the Bonds, setting forth the 
reasonable expectations of the City regarding the amount and use of all the 
proceeds of the Bonds, the facts, circumstances and estimates on which they 
are based, and other facts and circumstances relevant to the tax treatment of 
the interest on and the tax status of the Bonds.  The Director of Finance or any 
other officer of the City having responsibility for issuance of the Bonds is 
specifically authorized to designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt 
obligations” if such designation is applicable and desirable, and to make any 
related necessary representations and covenants. 

Each covenant made in this Section with respect to the Bonds is also 
made with respect to all issues any portion of the debt service on which is paid 
from proceeds of the Bonds (and, if different, the original issue and any 
refunding issues in a series of refundings), to the extent such compliance is 
necessary to assure exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes, and the officers identified above are authorized to 
take actions with respect to those issues as they are authorized in this Section 
to take with respect to the Bonds. 

Section 9.  Official Statement, Rating, Bond Insurance, Continuing 
Disclosure and Financing Costs. 

(a) Primary Offering Disclosure -- Official Statement.  The City 
Manager and the Director of Finance are each authorized and directed, on 
behalf of the City and in their official capacities, to (i) prepare or cause to be 
prepared, and make or authorize modifications, completions or changes of or 
supplements to, a disclosure document in the form of an official statement 
relating to the original issuance of the Bonds in substantially the form as is 
now on file with the City Clerk, (ii) determine, and to certify or otherwise 
represent, when the official statement is to be “deemed final” (except for 
permitted omissions) by the City as of its date or is a final official statement for 
purposes of paragraph (b) of the Rule, (iii) use and distribute, or authorize the 
use and distribution of those official statements and any supplements thereto 
in connection with the original issuance of the Bonds, and (iv) complete and 
sign those official statements and any supplements thereto as so approved, 
together with such certificates, statements or other documents in connection 



- 17 - 

with the finality, accuracy and completeness of those official statements and 
any supplements, as they may deem necessary or appropriate. 

(b) Application for Rating or Bond Insurance.  If, in the judgment of 
the Director of Finance, the filing of an application for (i) a rating on the Bonds 
by one or more nationally-recognized rating agencies, or (ii) a policy of 
insurance from a company or companies to better assure the payment of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds, is in the best interest of and financially 
advantageous to this City, the Director of Finance is authorized to prepare and 
submit those applications, to provide to each such agency or company such 
information as may be required for the purpose, and to provide further for the 
payment of the cost of obtaining each such rating or policy, except to the extent 
otherwise paid or reimbursed pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (if any) 
and/or the Registrar Agreement, from the proceeds of the Bonds to the extent 
available and otherwise from any other funds lawfully available and that are 
appropriated or shall be appropriated for that purpose.  The Director of 
Finance is hereby authorized, to the extent necessary or required, to enter into 
any agreements, in the name of and on behalf of the City, that the Director of 
Finance determines to be necessary in connection with the obtaining of that 
bond insurance. 

(c) Agreement to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  For the benefit of the 
holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, the City agrees to 
provide or cause to be provided such financial information and operating data, 
audited financial statements and notices of the occurrence of certain events, in 
such manner as may be required for purposes of the Rule.  The City Manager 
and the Director of Finance are each authorized and directed to complete, sign 
and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, in the name and on behalf of 
the City, in substantially the form as is now on file with the City Clerk.  The 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement is approved, together with any changes or 
amendments that are not inconsistent with this Ordinance and not 
substantially adverse to the City and that are approved by the City Manager 
and the Director of Finance on behalf of the City, all of which shall be 
conclusively evidenced by the signing of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
or amendments thereto. 

The Director of Finance is further authorized and directed to establish 
procedures in order to ensure compliance by the City with its Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement, including timely provision of information and notices as 
described above.  Prior to making any filing required under the Rule, the 
Director of Finance shall consult with and obtain legal advice from, as 
appropriate, the City Attorney and bond or other qualified independent special 
counsel selected by the City.  The Director of Finance, acting in the name and 
on behalf of the City, shall be entitled to rely upon any such legal advice in 
determining whether a filing should be made.  The performance by the City of 



- 18 - 

its Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be subject to the annual 
appropriation of any funds that may be necessary to perform it. 

(d) Financing Costs.  The expenditure of the amounts necessary to pay 
any Financing Costs in connection with the Bonds, to the extent not paid by 
the Original Purchaser and/or the Bond Registrar in accordance with the 
Certificate of Award, the Purchase Agreement (if any) and/or the Registrar 
Agreement, is authorized and approved, and the Director of Finance is 
authorized to provide for the payment of any such amounts and costs from the 
proceeds of the Bonds to the extent available and otherwise from any other 
funds lawfully available that are appropriated or shall be appropriated for that 
purpose. 

Section 10.  Bond Counsel.  The legal services of the law firm of Squire 
Patton Boggs (US) LLP are hereby retained.  Those legal services shall be in the 
nature of legal advice and recommendations as to the documents and the 
proceedings in connection with the authorization, sale and issuance of the 
Bonds and rendering at delivery related legal opinions, all as set forth in the 
form of engagement letter from that firm which is now on file in the office of the 
City Clerk.  In providing those legal services, as an independent contractor and 
in an attorney-client relationship, that firm shall not exercise any 
administrative discretion on behalf of this City in the formulation of public 
policy, expenditure of public funds, enforcement of laws, rules and regulations 
of the State, any county or municipal corporation or of this City, or the 
execution of public trusts.  For those legal services that firm shall be paid just 
and reasonable compensation and shall be reimbursed for actual out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred in providing those legal services.  The Director of Finance is 
authorized and directed, to the extent they are not paid or reimbursed 
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (if any) and/or the Registrar Agreement, 
to make appropriate certification as to the availability of funds for those fees 
and any reimbursement and to issue an appropriate order for their timely 
payment as written statements are submitted by that firm.  The amounts 
necessary to pay those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated 
from the proceeds of the Bonds, if available, and otherwise from available 
moneys in the General Fund. 

Section 11.  Municipal Advisor.  The services of Rockmill Financial 
Consulting, LLC, as municipal advisor, are hereby retained.  The municipal 
advisory services shall be in the nature of financial advice and 
recommendations in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds.  In 
rendering those municipal advisory services, as an independent contractor, 
that firm shall not exercise any administrative discretion on behalf of the City 
in the formulation of public policy, expenditure of public funds, enforcement of 
laws, rules and regulations of the State, the City or any other political 
subdivision, or the execution of public trusts.  That firm shall be paid just and 
reasonable compensation for those municipal advisory services and shall be 



- 19 - 

reimbursed for the actual out-of pocket expenses it incurs in rendering those 
municipal advisory services.  The Director of Finance is authorized and 
directed, to the extent they are not paid or reimbursed pursuant to the 
Purchase Agreement (if any) and/or the Registrar Agreement, to make 
appropriate certification as to the availability of funds for those fees and any 
reimbursement and to issue an appropriate order for their timely payment as 
written statements are submitted by that firm.  The amounts necessary to pay 
those fees and any reimbursement are hereby appropriated from the proceeds 
of the Bonds, if available, and otherwise from available moneys in the General 
Fund. 

Section 12.  Certification and Delivery of Ordinance and Certificate of 
Award.  The City Clerk is directed to promptly deliver or cause to be delivered a 
certified copy of this Ordinance and an executed copy of the Certificate of 
Award to the County Auditor of Delaware County, Ohio. 

Section 13.  Satisfaction of Conditions for Bond Issuance.  This City 
Council determines that all acts and conditions necessary to be done or 
performed by the City or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of 
the Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of 
the City have been performed and have been met, or will at the time of delivery 
of the Bonds have been performed and have been met, in regular and due form 
as required by law; that the full faith and credit and general property taxing 
power (as described in Section 7) of the City are pledged for the timely payment 
of the debt charges on the Bonds; that no statutory or constitutional limitation 
of indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the 
Bonds; and that the Bonds are being authorized and issued pursuant to 
Chapter 133 of the Ohio Revised Code, the Charter of the City, this Ordinance, 
the Certificate of Award and other authorizing provisions of law. 

Section 14.  Compliance with Open Meeting Requirements.  This City 
Council finds and determines that all formal actions of this City Council and 
any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance 
were taken in an open meeting of this City Council or any of its committees, 
and that all deliberations of this City Council and of any of its committees that 
resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in 
compliance with the law, including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

Section 15.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance is declared to be an 
emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City, and for the further 
reason that this Ordinance is required to be immediately effective in order to 
issue and sell the Bonds, which is necessary to enable the City to timely retire 
the Outstanding Notes and thereby preserve its credit; wherefore, this 
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 



- 20 - 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
PASSED:  , 2019 YEAS _____ NAYS _____ 
 ABSTAIN _____ 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 CITY CLERK   MAYOR 
 
 



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO: City Council 
FROM:  Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
DATE: February 6, 2019 
RE: Bond Legislation  
 
 

The agenda for the February 11, 2019 City Council meeting includes legislation authorizing the 
issuance of long-term bonds to be utilized to pay off the maturing notes originally issued to pay 
for the construction of Glenn Road. 
 
In 2005 the City began designing and acquiring land necessary to construct Glenn Road.  The 
city’s involvement with this construction project was tied to pre-annexation agreements with 
several developers and Grady Hospital.  The agreements provided that the City would construct 
Glenn Road and a New Community Authority (NCA) would be established to charge an annual 
7.5 mill charge to each developed property.  The NCA was created and 7.5 mill assessment was 
first levied for tax year 2008.  The City constructed the road beginning in 2007 and completing 
construction in 2011.  As the City incurred cost to construct the road we issued short-term one 
year notes to finance the construction payments.  Each year since we have re-issued the one year 
notes capitalizing any interest costs and gradually paying down principal based on the NCA 
charge receipts.  From a strategic standpoint the annual note issuance made sense as we were 
operating in a low short-term interest rate environment (as low as 0.20%) and thus have been 
able to minimize interest costs.  Ultimately the residents in the area will pay for the construction 
and interest costs via the NCA charge they pay annually. 
 
Due to recent market changes I am proposing to finalize the financing by issuing 10 year long-
term bonds in lieu of re-issuing one year notes as we have done for the last 12 years.  As recently 
as two years ago the spread between the 1 year rate (0.893%) municipal bond rate and the 15 
year rate (2.996%) was over 200 basis points.  Thus issuing the one year notes continued to make 
sense.  Currently the spread between the 1 year rate (1.706%) and the 15 year rate (2.746% is 
about 100 basis points.  Consequently I think we have an opportunity to lock in the lower interest 
rate for the remainder of time necessary to pay the debt service on the improvements.  Interest 
rates can change daily.  I would like to act quickly to issue the bonds.  The current timeline is: 
 



 
 

 

 February 11, 2019 Council approves bond legislation    
 February 12, 2019 Begin preparation of Preliminary Official Statement and rating  
    Presentation 
 March 4, 2019  Complete POS and rating presentation 
 March 11, 2019 Make rating presentation to Moody’s 
 March 18, 2019 Receive rating and distribute POS to investors 
 March 26, 2019 Price bond issue 
 April 9, 2019  Close Bonds 
 April 10, 2019  Pay off maturing $10,265,000 notes. 
 
To meet the above timeline it would be helpful to approve the bond issue authorization 
legislation Monday night with the first reading.  We would not be issuing any new debt and the 
project for which the debt was incurred was completed over eight years ago.  I have discussed 
the decision to bond the debt now and the above timeline, including adopting the legislation after 
one reading, with the Finance Committee and they were supportive of the approach.  Let me 
know if you have any questions and I will make sure to address them at, or prior to, Monday’s 
meeting. 
  
 





  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 02/11/2019 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 19-06    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR CARROLS CORPORATION APPROVING A FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BURGER KING ON APPROXIMATELY 1.14 ACRES 
ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 PUD (GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 
1034 WEST CENTRAL AVENUE (US 37). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code and the approved PUD Zoning text for the site. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on February 6, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 19-06 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR CARROLS CORPORATION 
APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
BURGER KING ON APPROXIMATELY 1.14 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED B-3 PUD (GENERAL BUSINESS 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 1034 WEST 
CENTRAL AVENUE (US 37). 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on February 6, 2019 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Carrols Corporation for 
Burger King on approximately 1.14 acres on property zoned B-3 PUD (General 
Business District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay District) and located 
at 1034 West Central Avenue (US 37) (PC Case 2019-0023).  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the a Final Development Plan for Carrols Corporation for 
Burger King on approximately 1.14 acres on property zoned B-3 PUD (General 
Business District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay District) and located 
at 1034 West Central Avenue (US 37), is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with the following condition that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details 
of the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based 
on the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a 
complete plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The handicap access sidewalk to the site shall be from the private drive to 
the east which shall require a sidewalk to be extended from West Central 
Avenue north along the west side of the private drive and then extended 
west in line with the main entrance door of the east elevation of Burger 
King. 

3. The limestone on the building shall be Delaware blue limestone or 
equivalent as approved by City Staff.  

4. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

5. All roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened by a parapet wall or 
approved screening device. 



6. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material and 
color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  

7. A continuous row of shrubs shall be planted adjacent to the southern 
parking spaces along West Central Avenue. 

8. The applicant shall replace the removed qualifying trees inch per caliper 
inch and/or a payment in lieu of planting of $100 per caliper inch (40 x 
$100 =  $4,000) or a combination of both to achieve compliance with 
Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations.  

9. The Shade Tree Commission shall approve all landscaping plans.  
10. The applicant shall submit a temporary window signage plan for review and 

approval prior to building permit approval. 
11. All signage shall achieve compliance with the approved development text 

and current zoning code. 
12. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the City and all lighting 

must meet the requirements of the Planning & Zoning Code. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 









































































 

ORDINANCE NO. 19- 
 

AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THAT NO PERSON 
SHALL USE ANY FORM OF TOBACCO WITHIN 50 FEET 
OF RECREATIONAL FACILITIES OF CITY PARKS. 
TOBACCO USE INCLUDES SMOKING, E-CIGARETTES, 
OTHER SMOKING DEVICES AND INGESTIBLE 
FORMS. RECREATIONAL FACILITIES INCLUDE 
PLAYGROUNDS, ATHLETIC FIELDS, AQUATIC AREAS, 
PICNIC SHELTERS AND RESTROOMS. THE HIDDEN 
VALLEY GOLF COURSE SHALL BE EXEMPT FROM 
THIS SMOKING BAN.  

 
WHEREAS, City Council created the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

to advise Council and to work with the City Planning Commission on problems 
and needs in the field of parks and recreation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board believes that tobacco 

use in the proximity of children and adults engaging in or watching outdoor 
recreational activities at the City of Delaware Parks is detrimental to their health 
and can be offensive to those using such facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board believes parents, 

leaders, and officials involved in recreation are role models for youth and can 
have a positive effect on the lifestyle choices they make; and 

 
WHEREAS, cigarettes, once consumed in public spaces, are often 

discarded on the ground requiring additional maintenance expenses, diminish 
the beauty of City parks and recreational facilities, and pose a risk to toddlers 
and animals due to ingestion; and 

 
WHEREAS, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

(CDC), tobacco use is the leading cause of preventable disease, disability, and 
death in the United States1i; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2006, the United States Surgeon General determined that 

there is no safe amount of secondhand smoke; breathing secondhand smoke is 
a known cause of sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS). Children are also more 
likely to have lung problems, ear infections, and severe asthma from being 
around smoke; Secondhand smoke causes heart disease and lung cancer2; and 
                                       
1 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Smoking and Tobacco Use Fast Facts, 
https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/facts_sheets/fast_facts/index.htm(last (last 
visited July 2, 2018). 
2 U.S. DEP’T OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVS., THE HEALTH CONSEQUENCES OF 
INVOLUNTARY EXPOSURE TO TOBACCO SMOKE; A REPORT OF THE SURGEON GENERAL 
(2006) https://www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/secondhand-smoke-conusmer.pdf 

https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/facts_sheets/fast_facts/index.htm(last


 

 
WHEREAS,  the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board determines that the 

prohibition of tobacco use at the City of Delaware Parks recreational facilities 
serves to protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of 
Delaware and visitors to the City’s parks; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board met on June 19, 

2018 to consider input from stakeholders, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
representatives, and City staff; and 

 
WHEREAS, based on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board motion to 

recommend the following ordinance update: 
 
NO PERSON SHALL USE ANY FORM OF TOBACCO AT OR ON ANY CITY 

OF DELAWARE PARK OWNED OR OPERATED INDOOR AND/OR OUTDOOR 
RECREATIONAL FACILITIES. TOBACCO USE INCLUDES E-CIGARETTES, 
OTHER SMOKING DEVICES AND INGESTIBLE FORMS. THESE FACILITIES 
INCLUDE PLAYGROUNDS, ATHLETIC FIELDS, AQUATIC AREAS, PICNIC 
SHELTERS AND RESTROOMS. THE HIDDEN VALLEY GOLF COURSE SHALL 
BE EXEMPT FROM THIS SMOKING BAN. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1. That the recommendations of City Council’s Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board, as identified above, are hereby adopted by City 
Council and made part of the Official Record of the City of Delaware. 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



 

 
                                       



 

  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:    DATE: 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 19-_____ 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES  
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1121 AND 1143 OF THE PLANNING 
AND ZONING CODE OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to R.C. 715.61, the City of Delaware can regulate massage 
establishments. Various municipalities in Ohio have adopted regulatory 
frameworks of various levels of complexity, as detailed in the memorandum 
prepared by staff and disseminated to Council on September 7, 2018. 
Following Council’s directive to explore regulatory options via the City’s zoning 
code, staff has developed the following ordinance. “Licensed massage 
establishments” are specifically defined at a permitted use within the B-1 
Limited Business, B-2 Central Business, B-3 Community Business, and B-4 
General Business districts in 1143.02 of the Planning and Zoning code. This is 
where they previously were a permitted use as “health and allied services,” and 
does not expand or contract the districts where they are permitted. To receive 
the necessary certificate of zoning compliance from the City’s planning and 
community development department to commence this use under Ordinance 
1127.02, an applicant must certify that massage treatments will be provided by 
an individual licensed by the State Medical Board of Ohio to practice “massage 
therapy” or under the supervision of such a licensee. This new ordinance 
specifically excepts massage treatments that may be provided incidentally to 
medical or chiropractic treatment, so as not to over-regulate unrelated 
businesses.  



 

 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
While most massage establishments are legitimate businesses, massage 
establishments can unfortunately provide a convenient “front” for illegal 
activities and human-trafficking. By requiring that new massage 
establishments provide proof of State licensure to practice massage therapy, 
before being issued a certificate of zoning compliance, this ordinance adds an 
extra layer of scrutiny to deter illegal activity, within an established regulatory 
framework.  
 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1121 AND 
1143 OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE OF THE 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has both the duty and authority to 

enact ordinances to protect the health, safety, and welfare of those within its 
borders; and  

 
WHEREAS, massage services are offered independently or as part of 

medical or cosmetological services which require appropriate regulations to 
insure the health, safety, and welfare of citizens and avoid nuisances; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to R.C. 715.61, “Any municipal corporation may 

regulate and license…all persons engaged in the trade, business, or profession 
of … massaging”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the 

health, safety, and welfare of the community to ensure that businesses that 
offer massage services are operated by individuals who have undergone State 
licensure; and 

 
WHEREAS, multiple divisions of the State of Ohio already provide 

comprehensive health and safety requirements as part of occupational licenses 
that are relevant to massage services, including (but not limited to) the state 
medical board’s licensing and regulation of massage therapy in accordance 
with R.C. 4731.15 and related sanctions. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Delaware, 
State of Ohio:   
 
 SECTION 1. That Chapter 1121.02 of the Planning and Zoning Code is 
amended as follows.  

 
1121.02 – Definitions.  
 
(b)(96.1) MASSAGE means the use of any method on, or friction against, or 
stroking, kneading, rubbing, tapping, pounding, vibrating, pressing, 
compressing, percussing, stretching, rotating, heating, cooling, or 
stimulating of, the external soft parts of a living human body, which may 
be performed with direct or indirect human contact, or with the aid of an 
apparatus, appliance, or other tool or object. 
 



 

(b)(96.2) MASSAGE TREATMENT means providing for a fee or any 
consideration whatsoever any of the following services: 
 
 (1) Massage; 
 
 (2) The application of liniments, antiseptics, oils, powders, creams, 
 lotions, ointments, hot or cold liquids or solid objects, or other 
 similar treatments.  
 
(b)(96.3) LICENSED MASSAGE ESTABLISHMENT means any establishment 
having a fixed place of business where a person or entity advertises the 
availability of, offers, provides, or permits to be carried on, massage 
treatments. Prior to issuance of a certificate of zoning compliance for a 
licensed massage establishment, the applicant must certify to the City 
that all massage treatments shall be provided by individuals licensed by 
the State Medical Board of Ohio pursuant to R.C. 4731.15 to practice 
“massage therapy” or individuals under the supervision of those so 
licensed pursuant to R.C. 4731.15. 
 

(A) A “Massage establishment” does not include any establishment 
where massage treatment is provided as a portion of services 
provided by individuals licensed by, or under the supervision of 
individuals licensed by, any of the following:  

 
(1) The Ohio State Cosmetology and Barber Board or its 

 predecessors pursuant to R.C. 4709 or 4713; 
 

(2) The State of Ohio Board of Nursing pursuant to R.C. 4723; 
 

(3) The Ohio Occupational Therapy, Physical Therapy, and 
 Athletic Trainers Board pursuant to R.C. 4755; 

 
(4) The Ohio State Chiropractic Board pursuant to R.C. 4734; 

 
(5) The State Medical Board of Ohio pursuant to R.C. 4730 or 
R.C. 4762; except those licensed pursuant to R.C. 4731.15 to 
practice “massage therapy.”  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
SECTION 2. That the permitted use schedule of Chapter 1143.02 of the 
Planning and Zoning Code is amended as follows.  
 
(b)  Office and Professional 
Services  

B-1 Limited 
Business 

B-2 Central 
Business 

B-3 Community 
Business 

B-4 General 
Business 

 (1)  Offices—administrative, 
business and professional  P  P  P  P  

 (2)  Financial institutions, 
banks  P  P  P  P  

 (3)  Medical and dental offices, 
health and allied services  P  P  P  P  

  (4)  LICENSED MASSAGE 
ESTABLISHMENTS P(a) P(a) P(a) P(a) 

P = Principal use permitted by right   C = Conditional use   A = Accessory use  
Blank = Use not permitted   
 
(a) SUBJECT TO CERTIFICATE OF ZONING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 
ENUMERATED IN 1121.02(b)(96.3) 
 
SECTION 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby declared to 
be an emergency measure, necessary to provide for the public peace, property, 
health, safety, welfare, and as such will be in full force immediately upon its 
passage. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
  
PASSED: _________________________, 2019 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



 

January 7, 2019 

Re: Proposal to purchase or lease 20 E William Street 

 
Dear Mr. Homan, 

 
Main Street Delaware’s success has led to the organization outgrowing its 

current space located at 20 East Winter Street. This proposal is a request to 

purchase or enter a long-term lease of the City owned property located at 20 

East William Street, historically known as the Sheets Building. This proposal 

seeks to achieve the following mutually beneficial goals and objectives: 

 
1. Expand Main Street’s services offerings: Main Street currently works 

one on one with business and building owners to lighten the burden of 

government by providing free design and development consultation, 

business training, and support. Current services are limited by available 

space for educational programming that would support further 

investment into downtown businesses and real estate. 

2. Provide a public welcome center: Downtown is the living room of our 

community. Main Street seeks to provide a memorable, comfortable, 

and welcoming place where all citizens and visitors can feel at home. To 

this end, Main Street can provide visitors information about local 

businesses, upcoming events, and opportunities. Main Street can also 

offer restroom facilities to visitors during operating hours. 

3. Restore and maintain a historical building: Downtown Delaware 

consists of a cohesive grouping of late 19th and early 20th century 

buildings that create a sense of place and connection to local history. 

The subject property contributes to the historic downtown fabric; 

however, having been constructed for residential purposes, the building 

is not ideal for modern commercial business uses. Main Street’s 

occupancy can put the building to its highest and best use. 

4. Improve public infrastructure: Recent and ongoing Main Street projects 

include improvements to “shortcut alley”, sidewalk cleanup, and 

building graffiti removal. These projects are limited by individual project 

fundraising efforts and volunteer coordination and availability. Main 

Street would like to increase beautification and improvement efforts. 

Main Street is currently exploring options to provide enhanced services 

-Giving People a Vibrant Downtown Experience- 
 



 

to property owners for improvements to the public right-of-way 

through a property owner supported assessment. Services may include 

sidewalk repairs and litter, graffiti, and snow removal, as well as public 

safety and communication. Expansion of services will require additional 

support spaces unavailable at Main Street’s current location. 

Main Street Delaware is a 501(c)(3), non-profit economic development 

organization that advocates specifically for the downtown business district. As 

an entirely volunteer run organization we clock over 4,750 volunteer hours per 

year and bring 5,000 -15,000 people downtown for shopping and entertainment 

every month. Additionally, Main Street themed events strengthen community 

ties through outreach opportunities for the schools and university, fire and 

police, nonprofits and private businesses. 

 
Main Street Delaware’s proposal is based on comparable terms outlined in the 

Lease between the City of Delaware and Delaware Community Space, LLC, also 

known as Co-Hatch. According to the Lease, Co-Hatch is leasing 9,386 sf at a rate 

of approximately $8.31/sf annually for a period up to 20 years and is responsible 

for the cost of utilities, taxes, insurance, and maintenance; and the City is 

providing $1,185,686.00 or $126/sf to improve the building. 

 
The Delaware County Auditor website lists 3,016 square feet of above ground 

space at 20 E William Street. $8.31/sf multiplied by 3,016 square feet equals a 

rent rate of $26,601 per year ($2,217 per month plus expenses) over the 

20-year term; and 3,016 square feet multiplied by $126/sf equals $308,016.00 in 

City provided improvements to the building. 

 
Main Street proposes the following options: 

 
Purchase Option: $308,016.00 over 20 years discounted back to present day 

equals approximately $150,000.00 which we believe is also comparable to 

the value of an old house in need of significant updates located in the 

desirable Northwest neighborhood. Main Street proposes to purchase the 

building for a mutually agreeable price and terms. Main Street is willing to 

grant the City a right-of-first-refusal to purchase the building back should 

Main Street at any time in the future decide to sell the property. 

 

-Giving People a Vibrant Downtown Experience- 
 



 

Lease Option: Main Street will forgo asking the City to bear the expense to 

improve the space for the option to lease the building for up to 20 years at 

a rate of $0 per month and be responsible for the cost of utilities, 

insurance, and maintenance on the building. 

 
This proposal is not intended to create any legal rights or obligations between 

Main Street Delaware or the City of Delaware, but rather to summarize the basic 

terms that may interest the City. 

 
We look forward to continuing this discussion with you to create a welcoming 

and more prosperous downtown. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

Susie Bibler, Executive Director 

Main Street Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 
 

-Giving People a Vibrant Downtown Experience- 
 



City Manager Report 20190211 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: February 7, 2019 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 N/A 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
 January 23 
 * Finance Committee Meeting 
 January 24 
 *  OCMA Board Meeting 
 January 25 
 * ICMA Columbus 2022 Conference Planning 
 January 28 
 * Delaware County Commissioners Meeting 
 * Rotary 
 * City Council Meeting 
 * Joint Meeting with Delaware City School 
 January 31 
 * Ohio Wesleyan University – Office of President Rock Jones 
 * Family Promise Event 
 February 2 
 * Dreaming a Greener Delaware – Working Summit 
 February 4 
 * Rotary – Youth Exchange Committee 
 * Delaware Chamber Annual Dinner 
 February 5 
 * CIC Meeting 
 * Liberty Casting and Sustainable Delaware Meeting 
 February 6 
 * Main Street Delaware Heritage Ohio Annual Accreditation 
 February 7 
 * Citizen’s Academy – Council/Manager Form of Government 
  



City Manager Report 20190211 

  
  



February 
 

 2019 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
     1 2 

     First Friday  

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
  Public Works/Public 

Utilities 6:00 pm 
Planning Commission 
6:30 pm 

   

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 City Council 7:oo pm  BZA 6:30 pm-canceled    

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
 Parking & Safety 

6:00 pm -canceled 
     

24 25 26 27 28   
 City Council 7:00 pm Shade Tree Commission 

6:30 pm 
Historic Preservation 
Commission 6:30 pm 

   

       
       

 


	01 20190211 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20190114 council minutes
	03 20190128 council minutes and joint minutes
	04 20190116 planning minutes
	05 fact sheet res 19-05,  committee appointments
	06 res 19-05, committee appoints
	07 20190207105124423
	07 US23 Corridor Traffic Managment Update 2.7.19
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	08 Liquor Permit Police Report
	09 Food Truck Depot- 59 Potter St - permit transfer application
	09 FoodTruckDepot_TREX_013019
	10 Food Truck Depot- 59 Potter St- TREX form for permit application
	11 fact sheet ord 19-01, 2018-3116 Ohio Health Medical Office Buildiing FDP
	12 14 2018-3116 fdp ohio health medical office
	13 ord 19-01, 2018-3116 Ohio Health Medical Office Building   FDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-01
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	14 fact sheet res 19-06,  dkmm plan update
	15 res 19-06 dkmm plan update
	16 DKMM Solid Waste Plan Summary v2
	17 Fact Sheet for ord 19-02, amend chpt 529 Liquor
	18 ord 19-02, amend chpt 529
	19 Fact Sheet  ord 19-03, appropriation supplemental hayes statue
	20 ord 19-03, appropriation supplemental Hayes Statue
	21 GRANT DRAFT HAYES
	22 Fact Sheet ord 19-04, appropriation (EV Charging Stations)
	23 ord 19-04, appropriation (EV Charging Stations)
	24 BP Parking Exhibit 2.5.19
	25 fact sheet ord 19-05,  bonds
	26 ord 19-05 , bond glen rd nca
	27 Dean Memo Council Bond Legislation memo Feb 6
	28 supplemental Fiscal Officer's Certificate
	29 fact sheet ord 19-06, 2018-0023 Burger King FDP
	30 ord 19-06, 2019-0023 Burger King FDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 19-06
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	31 2019-0023 burger king
	32 city mgr memo discussion items
	33 ord 19-xx parks smoking ban-2
	34 revised massage fact sheet
	35 massage zoning ordinance
	36 E William Street Proposal
	37 city managers report 20190211
	38 February 2019



